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 1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

 2             JUDGE MOSS:  Good afternoon.  My name is 

 3   Dennis Moss.  I'm an administrative law judge for the 

 4   Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission.  We 

 5   are convened this hour a little after one in the 

 6   afternoon on March 6th in the case styled, In the 

 7   Matter of the Application of U S West, Inc. and Qwest 

 8   Communications International, Inc., for an Order 

 9   Disclaiming Jurisdiction, or in the Alternative, 

10   Approving the U S West, Inc., and Qwest Communications 

11   International, Inc., Merger.

12             I'll note for the record that that proceeding 

13   in its essential parts was concluded by the 

14   commission's Ninth Supplemental Order entered two years 

15   ago.  We are now in another phase of the proceeding to 

16   take up the petition by Qwest to modify the Ninth 

17   Supplemental Order and to mitigate credit payments 

18   otherwise arguably due under the performance standard 

19   agreements or requirements of the settlement agreement 

20   that was approved by the Ninth Supplemental Order.

21             We are in our prehearing phase and then we 

22   will go into our evidentiary hearing phase.  Let's go 

23   ahead and take appearances, and we'll begin with the 

24   company.

25             MS. ANDERL:  Lisa Anderl representing Qwest, 
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 1   1600 Seventh Avenue, Room 3206, Seattle, Washington, 

 2   98191.  Do you need fax and phone? 

 3             JUDGE MOSS:  I think that's adequate.  

 4   Mr. ffitch?

 5             MR. FFITCH:  Simon ffitch, assistant attorney 

 6   general, public counsel section, 900 Fourth Avenue, 

 7   Suite 2000, Seattle, Washington, 98164.

 8             JUDGE MOSS:  Ms. Johnston?

 9             MS. JOHNSTON:  Sally Johnston, senior 

10   assistant attorney general appearing upon behalf of 

11   Commission staff.  My business address is 1400 South 

12   Evergreen Park Drive Southwest, Olympia, Washington, 

13   98504.

14             JUDGE MOSS:  Are there any parties on the 

15   bridge line who wish to enter appearances?  Hearing 

16   none, are there any preliminary matters that we need to 

17   take up before we mark the exhibits?  Let me just ask, 

18   what order of witness presentation are we anticipating 

19   this afternoon?  Have parties discussed it among 

20   themselves?

21             MS. ANDERL:  We have not.  I would anticipate 

22   that Qwest's witnesses would go first.  We are going to 

23   ask that our two witnesses be presented as a panel, but 

24   beyond that, I don't have a preference or an opinion as 

25   to how staff and public counsel go after that.
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 1             MS. JOHNSTON:  I had assumed that since Qwest 

 2   has the burden in this matter that Qwest would make  

 3   its case presentation first followed by commission 

 4   staff, followed by public counsel.  Commission staff 

 5   does object to presenting Qwest's witnesses in the form 

 6   of a panel.  I have separate sets of cross-examination 

 7   questions that I would like to pose to each witness 

 8   separately, and each witness did file separate 

 9   testimony in this proceeding, so I would be opposed to 

10   a panel presentation.

11             JUDGE MOSS:  I prefer to have them separately 

12   as well.

13             MS. ANDERL:  That's fine.

14             JUDGE MOSS:  Which one would you like to 

15   present first? 

16             MS. ANDERL:  I think Ms. Jensen, 

17   understanding that their testimony is kind of 

18   interdependent, and it may be necessary to bring a 

19   witness back, but I think it will be workable to do 

20   Ms. Jensen and Mr. Jones.

21             JUDGE MOSS:  We'll play ping-pong witnesses 

22   if we need to.  Staff has Dr. Blackmon?

23             MS. JOHNSTON:  Yes, Your Honor.

24             JUDGE MOSS:  Public counsel, you aren't 

25   putting on a witness?
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 1             MR. FFITCH:  We have Mary Kimball as a 

 2   witness, Your Honor.

 3             JUDGE MOSS:  So you are anticipating some 

 4   live direct, or is there something I haven't received?

 5             MR. FFITCH:  We filed comments that were 

 6   verified by Ms. Kimball.  She will be appearing as a 

 7   witness, and she will adopt the comments as her 

 8   testimony.

 9             JUDGE MOSS:  I apologize I didn't pick up 

10   that nuance. 

11             MR. FFITCH:  We were unsure about the format 

12   that was going to be adopted, and we chose that rather 

13   than the Q and A, and everyone else went the other 

14   direction, so I apologize for the confusion that may 

15   have caused.

16             JUDGE MOSS:  That's my confusion and not 

17   yours.  I did note in the exhibit list Mary Kimball, so 

18   we will just add testimony to the description.  I have 

19   distributed sort of an outline exhibit list based on 

20   what I had received as of noon.  Let's go ahead and 

21   mark the exhibits.  I'll just go ahead and do this on 

22   the record.  Let's be off the record.

23             (Discussion off the record.)

24             JUDGE MOSS:  We'll mark Ms. Jensen's prefile 

25   testimony as 501, and we will mark the Qwest response 
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 1   to Staff Data Request No. 8 as 502.  We will mark 

 2   Robert L. Jones' prefiled testimony as 503.  504 will 

 3   be Qwest's response to Staff Data Request 9.  505 will 

 4   be Qwest's response to Staff Data Request 10.  506 will 

 5   be Qwest's response to Staff Data Request 11. 

 6             507 will be Dr. Blackmon's testimony.  508 

 7   will be the Qwest service performance indicator 

 8   definitions that was premarked as GB-275.  509 will be 

 9   what was premarked as GB-276, comparison of credit 

10   amounts under current and proposed alternatives.  510 

11   will be Mary Kimball's testimony, I'll call it, that 

12   was filed in the form of comments by public counsel.  

13   511 will be the comments filed by the organization that 

14   goes by the acronym SNAP, and 512 will be a set of 

15   public comments that have been tendered by the public 

16   counsel.

17             I think that completes all the exhibits, 

18   doesn't it?  Any other business we need to take care of 

19   at prehearing?

20             MS. ANDERL:  We will just be asking for 

21   confirmation that the SNAP comments will be treated in 

22   the same manner as the public comments, a letter for 

23   illustrative purposes type thing.

24             JUDGE MOSS:  You may note that at the time 

25   they are offered.
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 1             MS. JOHNSTON:  One other thing, Your Honor.  

 2   Just that the exhibits are going to be stipulated into 

 3   the record, so I don't have to lay foundation for them.

 4             JUDGE MOSS:  So that's just concerning the 

 5   data request responses; right?

 6             MS. JOHNSTON:  That's correct.

 7             JUDGE MOSS:  Remind me if I forget.  We got 

 8   our witness order.  Are you expecting much 

 9   cross-examination, Ms. Johnston, how much?

10             MS. JOHNSTON:  Probably five minutes for 

11   Ms. Jensen and perhaps 20 for Mr. Jones.

12             JUDGE MOSS:  How about you, Mr. ffitch?

13             MR. FFITCH:  A maximum of five minutes for 

14   each witness of the company.  None for Dr. Blackmon.

15             JUDGE MOSS:  Ms. Anderl?

16             MS. ANDERL:  Five to 10 minutes for 

17   Dr. Blackmon.  I remain uncertain whether I will have 

18   any questions for Ms. Kimball.

19             JUDGE MOSS:  I should ask if the parties want 

20   to have opening statements, closing statements; what's 

21   your preference?  Do you want to have an opening 

22   statement, Ms. Anderl?

23             MS. ANDERL:  If you think it would be helpful 

24   to the commission.  I don't feel strongly that I need 

25   one.  I think the issues have been framed and the 
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 1   pleadings submitted pretty short.  I don't know that it 

 2   will materially add.

 3             MS. JOHNSTON:  I had not anticipated on an 

 4   opening statement, Your Honor.

 5             JUDGE MOSS:  Mr. ffitch?

 6             MR. FFITCH:  No, Your Honor, I agree.

 7             JUDGE MOSS:  Unless the commissioners request 

 8   it to frame the case, we'll skip right to the 

 9   witnesses.  Let's be in recess until 1:30.

10             (Recess.)

11             JUDGE MOSS:  Let's be on the record.  Good 

12   afternoon again everyone.  We have been in recess for 

13   the last 10 minutes or so after our prehearing 

14   proceeding this afternoon in the matter that is styled 

15   In the Matter of the Application of U S West, Inc. and 

16   Qwest Communications International, Inc., for an Order 

17   Disclaiming Jurisdiction, or in the Alternative, 

18   Approving the U S West, Inc. and Qwest Communications 

19   International, Inc., Merger.  I'll note that the 

20   principle part of that proceeding that concerned that 

21   merger was concluded in 1999 by the entry on June 19th, 

22   1999, of the commission's Ninth Supplemental Order.  

23   That order, among other things, approved and adopted 

24   the settlement agreement in the proceeding 

25   comprehensive document today. 

01634

 1             We have before us another phase of the 

 2   proceeding in which Qwest has petitioned for 

 3   modification of our Ninth Supplemental Order with 

 4   respect to certain performance standards and also for 

 5   mitigation from certain credits due or arguably due 

 6   under those performance guidelines. 

 7             During our prehearing, we premarked a series 

 8   of exhibits, and given that I've had only 10 minutes, 

 9   we don't have a completed exhibit list for everybody to 

10   look at, but we will note them as we go along.  I think 

11   the commissioners have them marked in their books so 

12   they should be easy enough to follow.  If not, we will 

13   straighten it out.

14             We have four witnesses this afternoon.  We 

15   are going to start with the company's witnesses with 

16   Ms. Jensen and then Mr. Jones, followed by Dr. Blackmon 

17   for the staff, and last, Ms. Kimball for public 

18   counsel.  Ms. Jensen, let me ask you to rise and please 

19   raise your right hand.

20             (Witness sworn.)

21             JUDGE MOSS:  Is there anything preliminarily 

22   from the Bench?  The parties have decided that they do 

23   not wish to make opening statements unless the Bench 

24   would call for that.  There is no need for opening 

25   statements then.  We can proceed directly to the 
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 1   examination of Ms. Jensen.

 2                              

 3                              

 4                     DIRECT EXAMINATION

 5   BY MS. ANDERL: 

 6       Q.    Good afternoon, Ms. Jensen.  Would you please 

 7   state your name and business address for the record?

 8       A.    Theresa Jensen, 1600 Seventh Avenue, Seattle, 

 9   Washington, 98191, Room 3206.

10       Q.    Are you the same Theresa Jensen who filed 

11   testimony in this matter now marked as Exhibit 501?

12       A.    Yes, I am.

13       Q.    Do you have that testimony in front of you?

14       A.    I do.

15       Q.    Do you have any changes or corrections to it?

16       A.    I do not.

17       Q.    Is it true and correct to the best of your 

18   knowledge?

19       A.    Yes.

20       Q.    If I were to ask you the questions contained 

21   in that testimony today, would your answers be the 

22   same?

23       A.    Yes.

24             MS. ANDERL:  We would move to admit Exhibit 

25   501 and tender the witness for cross.

01636

 1             JUDGE MOSS:  Hearing no objection, Exhibit 

 2   501 will be entered as mark, and the witness is 

 3   available for cross-examination.

 4                              

 5                              

 6                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

 7   BY MS. JOHNSTON: 

 8       Q.    Good afternoon, Ms. Jensen.  Please turn to 

 9   Page 2, your testimony, which has been marked as 

10   Exhibit No. 501.  At Line 20, you make reference to 

11   Qwest's, quote/unquote, incredible improvement over 

12   prior year performance.  Do you see that?

13       A.    Yes, I do.

14       Q.    As I understand it, the company believes that 

15   the improvement in performance is an important reason 

16   in justifying the request for mitigation.  Is that a 

17   fair statement?

18       A.    Not entirely.  Our petition isn't specific to 

19   the degree of improvement, if I understood your 

20   question correctly.  Our petition is really to present 

21   the performance, the degree of performance, and to 

22   address where Qwest failed to meet the standard, what 

23   the reasons were behind those failures which we believe 

24   to be exceptional or unusual, and as a result of that, 

25   we do conclude that there was incredible improvement or 
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 1   considerable improvement in performance, which was one 

 2   of the goals of the agreement and the standard as an 

 3   objective.

 4       Q.    But if Qwest had not been able to demonstrate 

 5   any improvement in performance, you would agree, 

 6   wouldn't you, that mitigation would probably not be 

 7   justified?

 8       A.    Yes.  I don't believe Qwest would ask for 

 9   mitigation under those circumstances.

10       Q.    Can you show us the specific evidence in the 

11   record that demonstrates that Qwest has improved its 

12   performance in restoring out-of-service conditions?

13       A.    Yes.  If you will turn to the original 

14   petition.  I'm sorry, Your Honor.  I did not get an 

15   exhibit number for the actual petition.

16             JUDGE MOSS:  We don't need to make a petition 

17   an exhibit.  It's a pleading.

18             THE WITNESS:  If you look at Page 4, there is 

19   a summary of premerger performance and postmerger 

20   performance, and I specifically used the year 1999 when 

21   looking at the premerger because this agreement was 

22   actually negotiated in February of 2000, and the basis 

23   of that negotiation was Qwest, or at that time U S 

24   West's performance results from 1999 and earlier. 

25             Back to your question, if I can remember it, 
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 1   specifically, the measure that we are looking at is at 

 2   Line 9 and 10 which deals with out-of-service 

 3   conditions, repair intervals, and in 1999, the annual 

 4   average for reported interruptions or out-of-service 

 5   repair as well as other repair reports was 85.3 percent 

 6   that Qwest was able to restore within two working days.

 7              If you were to look at out-of-service 

 8   reports only, our experience is that the result would 

 9   be the same as this result or very close to the same.  

10   We did not have specific out-of-service result 

11   information available any longer, but Mr. Jones can 

12   address the knowledge base that he has that would tell 

13   you that the results are actually reflective of out of 

14   service as well as all reported repair.

15             What our data shows prior to any adjustment, 

16   but based on what we actually filed for 2001, which we 

17   file service results each month, our performance prior 

18   to any review of those trouble reports that were not 

19   cleared within two working days was an annual average 

20   of 99.4 percent versus the 1999 average of 85.3 

21   percent, and we quite honestly do view that as 

22   significant.  Clearly, our goal was 100 percent with 

23   the exceptions noted, and we did not expect to be able 

24   to attain such significant improvement in such a short 

25   period of time.  However, that was our objective, and 
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 1   we feel very good about it.

 2       Q.    Thank you.  Do you have before you what's 

 3   been marked as Exhibit 502, which is your response to 

 4   informal Staff Data Request No. 8?

 5       A.    Yes.

 6       Q.    This is no longer a confidential document; is 

 7   that correct?

 8       A.    That's correct.

 9       Q.    Would you degree that this Attachment D 

10   refers simply to, quote/unquote, repair reports and not 

11   to service interruptions or out-of-service repair 

12   reports?

13       A.    Yes.  As I just explained, the results in 

14   terms of percent cleared were very similar between the 

15   two.

16       Q.    Would you degree that this attachment refers 

17   to reports being cleared within 48 hours and not within 

18   two working days?

19       A.    Yes.

20       Q.    Which is a longer time interval in your view, 

21   48 hours or two working days?

22       A.    From an English description, obviously, two 

23   working days at times could be longer than 48 hours.

24       Q.    So if the company were to receive a trouble 

25   report at 6 a.m. on a Friday, when would the 48-hour 
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 1   period expire?

 2       A.    The 48-hour period would -- actually, I think 

 3   I will defer that question to Mr. Jones because he 

 4   better understands what this 48-hour interval 

 5   represents.  I can certainly answer it from a standard 

 6   definition if you like.

 7       Q.    That's fine.  Thank you.  Please turn to your 

 8   testimony at Page 3.  That's Exhibit 501.  Do you have 

 9   that before you? 

10       A.    Yes, I do.

11       Q.    Please read Lines 1 and 2.

12       A.    At Page 3? 

13       Q.    At Page 3.  There you testify that a 

14   million-dollar credit to customers on this performance 

15   metric amounts to a credit of approximately 27 cents 

16   per customer.  Do you see that?

17       A.    I do.  Unfortunately, my page numbers aren't 

18   lining up with yours, so give me a moment if I can find 

19   that.

20             JUDGE MOSS:  She's not looking at the 

21   petition.  She's looking at the testimony.

22             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

23       Q.    (By Ms. Johnston)  Isn't it the case that a 

24   credit of 27 cents per customer would be equal to 

25   667,000 rather than one million?  Will you accept that 
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 1   subject to check?

 2       A.    Yes.  The statement is not accurate.  The 27 

 3   cents, something was lost here in the translation.  The 

 4   27 cents -- you are correct -- equates to the 667,000 

 5   that we are requesting mitigation of.

 6       Q.    Thank you.  Finally, I would just like you to 

 7   read a couple of sentences into the record.  I culled 

 8   the transcript of the presentation of the settlement 

 9   proceeding in this docket, and I think there are some 

10   comments here that bear repeating.

11             MS. JOHNSTON:  Your Honor, may I approach the 

12   witness? 

13             JUDGE MOSS:  Yes, you may.  What transcript 

14   reference, Ms. Johnston?

15             MS. JOHNSTON:  This is Volume 6.  The 

16   transcript and proceedings in this docket, Volume 6 

17   Pages 323 through 496, and I'm referring only to Pages 

18   373 and 375. 

19       Q.    (By Ms. Johnston)  Ms. Jensen, would you 

20   please begin reading at Page 373 the first sentence 

21   under the first full paragraph?

22             JUDGE MOSS:  Let me interrupt here and be 

23   clear.  Is this some of Ms. Jensen's testimony from the 

24   earlier phase? 

25             MS. JOHNSTON:  Yes.
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 1             JUDGE MOSS:  Then we wouldn't expect her to 

 2   recall from memory what she said at that point, so 

 3   that's why you've tendered her copies of the 

 4   transcript? 

 5             MS. JOHNSTON:  That and also because I 

 6   believe it represents a prior inconsistent statement by 

 7   a deponent that has already been admitted into the 

 8   record.

 9             JUDGE MOSS:  We don't have a hearsay problem.  

10   I will just say I would not expect the witness to 

11   recall her exact testimony from two years ago either, 

12   so I agree that's fine.

13             THE WITNESS:  If I might just clarify at Line 

14   7, that's the sentence you are asking me to read?  "We 

15   also believe that the penalties are severe, and it's a 

16   demonstration by the applicants that we are committed 

17   to maintain service quality in the state of Washington 

18   and to continue to improve upon our performance in all 

19   areas."

20       Q.    (By Ms. Johnston)  Thank you.  Please turn to 

21   Page 375.  There, you will see an excerpt of the 

22   testimony of Mr. Steve Davis.  At the time of the 

23   merger, Mr. Davis held the position of senior vice 

24   president of government affairs.  Does he hold that 

25   position today, to your knowledge?
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 1       A.    He does.  It has a new department name, and 

 2   there may even be a new title, but it's essentially the 

 3   same position.

 4       Q.    Please begin reading at Line 2 and conclude 

 5   at Line 12.

 6       A.    "Thank you.  My name is Steve Davis and I'm 

 7   with Qwest.  I would like to say up front that Qwest 

 8   has been an active party in these negotiations.  

 9   They've been difficult negotiations, and I think both 

10   parties have done their very best to represent their 

11   interests, and it's resulted in a document that we can 

12   all stand behind, and I would like to assure you that 

13   Qwest has been a participant and stands behind this 

14   document and pledges its compliance with the terms of 

15   this document on a going-forward basis if it's adopted 

16   by the commission."

17       Q.    It was, in fact, adopted by the commission, 

18   was it not?

19       A.    Yes.  It was adopted by the commission, which 

20   also enables the commission to address revisions to 

21   this document.

22             MS. JOHNSTON:  Thank you.  That's all I have.

23             JUDGE MOSS:  Mr. ffitch? 

24             MR. FFITCH:  Your Honor, I would like to ask 

25   one more question with respect to the transcript in 
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 1   that proceeding.  I have one additional section I would 

 2   like to draw the witness's attention to, if I may 

 3   approach.

 4             JUDGE MOSS:  Sure.  Could you give us a 

 5   transcript reference, Mr. ffitch? 

 6             MR. FFITCH:  I can, Your Honor.  I don't have 

 7   extra copies.  I'm referring to Page 371, and I'm 

 8   asking the witness to begin reading at Line 20 and then 

 9   continue over to the end of the page and then finish 

10   the sentence onto the next page.

11    

12    

13                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

14   BY MR. FFITCH:

15       Q.    Ms. Jensen, do you see that transcript, that 

16   reference has been highlighted?

17       A.    Yes.

18       Q.    This is from your testimony in the settlement 

19   approval hearing in this matter; correct?

20       A.    Yes, it is.

21       Q.    Another section of the same testimony you've 

22   just been reading in response to Ms. Johnston's 

23   questions? 

24       A.    I can't confirm that, but I assume it's 

25   correct, yes.
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 1       Q.    Could you please just read your former 

 2   testimony beginning at Line 20 of the transcript that 

 3   you have before you?

 4       A.    Yes.  "Further, with respect to concerns that 

 5   have been raised about the quality of service and 

 6   investment in this state, the company has committed to 

 7   continue investment in this state, and also the 

 8   applicants have stepped up to some very stiff 

 9   requirements with respect to service quality and 

10   performance if the company fails to meet certain 

11   standards specified by the commission or as a part of 

12   this agreement."

13       Q.    Thank you very much.  Can I ask you to turn 

14   to Page 6 of your written testimony in this matter, 

15   please, and I'm asking you to look at Lines 1 and 2 of 

16   Page 6, and there, just to paraphrase your testimony, 

17   is that information about additional exceptions to the 

18   out-of-service standards, the information was not 

19   readily available when the merger was agreed to?  Is 

20   that a fair statement of the summary there?

21       A.    That is.

22       Q.    The exceptions, the additional exceptions 

23   that you are discussing here are set out back on Page 3 

24   of your testimony at Lines 11 through 13; is that 

25   right?
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 1       A.    Those are the major components of the 

 2   exceptions, yes.

 3       Q.    Those are major cable outages being the first 

 4   one and the second one being customers reasons. 

 5       A.    That's correct.

 6       Q.    So U S West was not aware at the time of the 

 7   merger that major cable outages would sometimes occur; 

 8   is that your testimony?

 9       A.    No, that is not my testimony.

10       Q.    So U S West was aware at the time of when it 

11   entered into the merger that major cable outages would 

12   periodically occur?

13       A.    As you may recall within the settlement 

14   agreement itself, there is a form of major cable 

15   outages, which is excluded from this measure.  What 

16   Qwest did not have information concerning are the 

17   specifics around the major cable outages that we had 

18   addressed in our combined testimony.  Those are not all 

19   major cable outages that Qwest experienced in 2001, so 

20   it is a subset, and it is that subset that with unique 

21   circumstances that Qwest was not aware of.  That is my 

22   testimony.

23       Q.    So it's your testimony, just so I understand, 

24   there has been an entirely new type of major cable 

25   outage that has appeared since the merger agreement was 

01647

 1   entered into?

 2       A.    If I may clarify, my testimony is that there 

 3   are circumstances associated with some, a smaller 

 4   subset of major cable outages that the company was not 

 5   specifically aware of at the time it made the 

 6   agreement.

 7       Q.    So there is a distinction between two 

 8   different types of major cable outages that you are 

 9   making?

10       A.    I think it would be better, Mr. ffitch, to 

11   say the distinction is in the specific circumstances 

12   associated with each specific major cable outage as 

13   opposed to two types of major cable outages.

14       Q.    Does that mean on a going-forward basis there 

15   could be in the future further new types of major cable 

16   outages that you are not aware of today that might give 

17   rise to future mitigation requests in future years?

18       A.    Let me see if I can clarify this, because I 

19   think there is some confusion by the question you are 

20   asking.  What is not unique -- the major cable outage 

21   in and of itself or the type of major cable outage is 

22   not unique, so therefore, we are not suggesting that 

23   there may be additional definitions associated with 

24   either those that we experienced in 2001 or those we 

25   might experience going forward. 
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 1             What is unique are the circumstances 

 2   associated with the restoration of service that was 

 3   required as a result of a major cable outage, and those 

 4   are each unique, and there may be some, such as the 

 5   ones we have referenced in this testimony, where the 

 6   company worked 24 hours a day around the clock every 

 7   day until service was restored, and that restoration 

 8   effort itself was exceptional or unusual versus other 

 9   major outages that can be restored in two working days 

10   because they tend to be more of the norm that you would 

11   typically encounter in a major cable outage.  That is 

12   the distinction we are trying to make in our testimony.

13       Q.    But U S West certainly must have had major 

14   cable outages that required the company to work 24 

15   hours a day every day, including holidays and Sundays, 

16   to restore prior to the merger agreement.

17       A.    That is correct, but each outage has unique 

18   circumstances, and by that, I mean the restoration 

19   efforts are unique, not the outage itself.  In some 

20   cases, the cause of the outage may be unique as well.

21       Q.    I guess what I'm having trouble understanding 

22   is you are asking that additional exceptions be created 

23   here for major cable outages; is that correct?

24       A.    That is correct.

25       Q.    You are also saying that essentially each one 
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 1   of those can be unique, so I'm frankly not sure how you 

 2   would craft an exception that would anticipate future 

 3   unique circumstances for future unique restoration 

 4   problems. 

 5       A.    I attempted to do that, Mr. ffitch, at Page 3 

 6   of my testimony starting at Line 20, and in essence, 

 7   what we are asking the commission to do is to exclude 

 8   those major outages where Qwest is working around the 

 9   clock to restore service and is unable to clear the 

10   source of the problem within two working days.  So 

11   there would need to be a demonstration by the company 

12   that it, in fact, was doing everything within its 

13   control to restore service and was unable to complete 

14   that within the two working days.  That would not 

15   include all major cable outages.

16       Q.    You are probably back to my first question, 

17   which is on Page 6, again on Lines 1 and 2, you testify 

18   that information regarding this type of major cable 

19   outage, as I understand you are referring to those, for 

20   example, where you have to work 24 hours a day around 

21   the clock, that information was not readily available 

22   to the company at the time the merger was entered into.

23       A.    That is correct, Mr. ffitch, and the reason 

24   being is that if you look at the data we were dealing 

25   with at that time, that 15 percent of repair trouble 
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 1   reports, Qwest was unable to analyze due to the sheer 

 2   volume of the number of tickets that were not closed 

 3   within two working days at that point in time, so the 

 4   result of our discussions to exclude those outages that 

 5   we felt should not be included in the measure was based 

 6   on experience, and the employees that we discussed with 

 7   that manage this effort on a day-to-day basis, so we 

 8   did not do a ticket-by-ticket analysis at that time.  

 9   Rather, we documented the exceptions and proposed 

10   exceptions, some of which are a product of negotiation 

11   based on our day-to-day experience.  That is what is 

12   intended by my statement.

13       Q.    So the prior exceptions were based on your 

14   experience in your discussions with company employees 

15   who worked in the service area; is that right?

16       A.    In this specific area, yes.

17       Q.    Neither your experience nor that of the 

18   company employees with whom you discussed these matters 

19   included the experience of working 24 hours a day 

20   around the clock to fix a major cable outage.  Is that 

21   what you are testifying to?

22       A.    No, it is not.

23       Q.    You also asked for a new exception to be 

24   created for, essentially, delays in trouble reports due 

25   to customer reasons.
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 1       A.    That's correct.

 2       Q.    I guess I have the same question with regard 

 3   to customer reasons.  Was not Qwest or U S West aware 

 4   at the time of the merger that some trouble reports 

 5   would not be resolved in two days due to customer 

 6   reasons?

 7       A.    I would say on a general basis, the company 

 8   was not aware of that, because for most circumstances, 

 9   as I think is evidenced by the data in this case, Qwest 

10   is able to get access to the customer's premise, and 

11   there are many instances, though Mr. Jones can more 

12   specifically address this, where Qwest doesn't require 

13   access to the customer's premises.  So no, I don't 

14   believe we envisioned that that would be an issue that 

15   would prevent us from being able to attain the 

16   standard, and it is a very small percentage overall.

17       Q.    So the company never had any experience prior 

18   to the merger of a problem resolving trouble reports 

19   due to customer reasons that resulted in more than two 

20   days.

21       A.    I don't think that's my testimony, 

22   Mr. ffitch.  What I'm saying is that that was not one 

23   of exclusions that came to mind when we attempted to 

24   cover those bases.

25       Q.     Were you aware that some trouble reports 
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 1   were not resolved in two days for customer reasons at 

 2   the time you entered into the merger?

 3       A.    I can't answer that question.  It was not an 

 4   area identified at that point in time because we did 

 5   not do the ticket-by-ticket analysis.  We did not have 

 6   time to do that.

 7       Q.    So in that area, you also relied on your own 

 8   experience or the company's experience and that of its 

 9   service employees.

10       A.    That's correct.

11       Q.    None of that include the experience of 

12   failure to resolve reports in two days for customer 

13   reasons. 

14       A.    What we attempted to achieve, Mr. ffitch, was 

15   those exceptions that we ran into on a day-to-day basis 

16   that would preclude us from meeting the two-working-day 

17   standard, and we did that from memory and experience, 

18   and I think the data shows in the petition itself that 

19   this area, while a component, a consideration, is a 

20   very small area in terms of the number of tickets that 

21   were missed, which would say that it probably happens 

22   less than maybe out to one-thousandth of a percent 

23   decimal, so it is not the usual circumstance that the 

24   company encountered at that time.  It's, in fact, the 

25   unusual circumstance. 
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 1             So no, in terms of trying to come up with a 

 2   list of exceptions that ought to be addressed in 

 3   looking at the standard for this particular measure, 

 4   this is not something that the company typically 

 5   experienced on a day-to-day basis, and therefore, it 

 6   was not raised.  Did the company experience it at that 

 7   time?  I just can't answer that.  I think Mr. Jones 

 8   would need to answer that.

 9       Q.    Can I ask you to look at Page 3 at the answer 

10   that runs from Line 1 through Line 5, please?  This, 

11   again, is your testimony.  It's Exhibit 501.

12       A.    Could you repeat those line numbers? 

13       Q.    Line 1 through 5, the answer at the top of 

14   the page.  There, you testified that the public 

15   interest would be better served if a million dollars 

16   were invested in Washington rather than the funds going 

17   to a customer credit; is that correct?

18       A.    Yes.

19       Q.    Isn't it the case that this commission 

20   determined that the current customer credit mechanism 

21   itself was in the public interest when they approved 

22   this settlement agreement and approved the merger?

23       A.    I don't believe that they did that 

24   exclusively, because there is a provision in the 

25   settlement agreement itself that recognizes that it may 
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 1   be appropriate for the company to come forward and 

 2   petition for mitigation of credit amounts that would 

 3   otherwise be paid, and the commission also approved 

 4   that language.

 5       Q.    This specific language that I've directed you 

 6   to here doesn't talk about mitigation, does it?  It 

 7   talks about the different approach to credits, doesn't 

 8   it?

 9       A.    I think the discussions on Lines 1 through 5 

10   is the essence of a portion of this petition, which is 

11   the company is requesting mitigation of this 27 cents 

12   per customer and has stated that the public interest 

13   would be better served if Qwest were to invest what 

14   should be corrected as $667,000 in Washington as 

15   opposed to returning 27 cents per current customer.

16       Q.    So are you disagreeing that the commission 

17   held in approving the stipulation and approving the 

18   merger that the existing service quality performance 

19   program, which provides for credits to customers, was 

20   in the public interest?

21       A.    No, I'm not disputing that.  I'm saying it 

22   wasn't done as a single consideration; that it needs to 

23   be looked at in addition to the same language that 

24   talks about mitigation of credit amounts and when that 

25   might be appropriate.  I don't think their approval of 
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 1   the credit as the mechanism for payment was exclusive.

 2       Q.    Can you point to something in the merger 

 3   agreement that says that that is not the exclusive 

 4   remedy for failure to meet the service quality 

 5   provisions?

 6       A.    Yes.  I believe at Page 7 of the settlement 

 7   agreement, Paragraph 5, mitigation of credit amounts is 

 8   to be considered in conjunction with the form which 

 9   follows for payment of credits, which is on Page 6.

10       Q.    Other than that, anything else?

11       A.    Could you repeat your question?

12             MR. FFITCH:  Could you read the question 

13   back?

14             (Question on Page 1655, Lines 2 to 5, read by 

15   the reporter.)

16             THE WITNESS:  If memory serves me correct, I 

17   think those two paragraphs primarily deal with the 

18   issue of credits.

19             MR. FFITCH:  May I have just one minute, Your 

20   Honor?

21             JUDGE MOSS:  Yes, Mr. ffitch.

22             MR. FFITCH:  Those are all the questions I 

23   have, Your Honor.  Thank you, Ms. Jensen.

24             JUDGE MOSS:  Any questions from the Bench?

25    
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 1                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

 2   BY  CHAIRWOMAN SHOWALTER: 

 3       Q.    Yes.  I would like to begin where you just 

 4   left off, and that's Page 7 of the merger agreement, 

 5   and I want to make sure my colleagues have it.  I 

 6   happen to be looking at the one that's attached to our 

 7   Ninth Order.  I'm talking about Page 7 of the agreement 

 8   itself that we approved.  I don't know what is easier, 

 9   to perhaps listen to Ms. Jensen read a couple of 

10   sentences out of it?

11             JUDGE MOSS:  It's attached to the Ninth 

12   Supplemental Order, if you have the Ninth Supplemental 

13   Order in your briefing book.

14             CHAIRWOMAN SHOWALTER:  I wasn't given that.  

15   Does anyone at the counsel table have one copy of the 

16   agreement?

17             JUDGE MOSS:  Why don't we use mine? 

18             MS. JOHNSTON:  I have that right here. 

19       Q.    (By Chairwoman Showalter)  Attached to our 

20   order at the end is the settlement agreement itself, 

21   and on Page 7 at the top, I'm looking at Sub 5, which 

22   is called, "mitigation of credit amount."

23             It seems to me here that it states that the 

24   standard that we are looking at is the public interest 

25   and that the company has the burden of demonstrating 
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 1   that the mitigation is in the public interest, and in 

 2   viewing that, we consider unusual or exceptional 

 3   circumstances, but in my view, that is not the standard 

 4   itself.  The standard is the public interest.

 5       A.    We would agree.

 6       Q.    So my question to you is first is if we 

 7   mitigate this penalty in any way, let's say up to the 

 8   27 cents, first of all, how do we know that the amount, 

 9   $667,000, is invested?  At least with a credit, there 

10   is something that goes on a customer's bill.  You know 

11   that a customer got it.  So how could we be assured 

12   that an alternate way of spending that money actually 

13   inures to the benefit of ratepayers?

14       A.    I think there is a couple of options 

15   available to the commission, and one is that the 

16   commission could specifically direct the funds to a 

17   specific program, or the company could agree to work 

18   with the commission on a program that's yet to be 

19   defined.

20             The other is that the company does file its 

21   budget each year, by May first if my memory serves me 

22   right, and the company could as a part of that define 

23   how it is going to spend these funds, and the 

24   commission could go so far as to direct that 

25   expenditure to prevention of future service outages.  
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 1   So there are a variety of options available.  In 

 2   addition, the commission could in its order direct the 

 3   company to separately track and report on this 

 4   investment.  The company could also be directed to use 

 5   these funds for education specific to this area. 

 6             So there are a number of alternatives 

 7   available to the commission that could either be 

 8   negotiated or agreed upon today, and there could be a 

 9   process established that will insure that these funds 

10   are used for that purpose.

11       Q.    Aren't you saying then that it's in the 

12   public interest to spend the 27 cents per customer on 

13   something else, but you haven't identified the 

14   something else, so it's a little hard for us to say one 

15   method is more preferable or more in the public 

16   interest than another because one way is identified but 

17   the other way isn't.

18       A.    Actually, our proposal would be to reinvest 

19   it in Washington, which is fairly general, but that 

20   doesn't preclude the commission from being more 

21   specific.

22       Q.    So you would say it makes more sense to 

23   invest in Washington and leave the details of how to 

24   effect that to a subsequent discussion or even 

25   discussion in this hearing?
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 1       A.    That's correct. 

 2       Q.    I think this case looks backwards and 

 3   fowards, so the backwards is mitigation, the mitigation 

 4   request.  The forward is modify the agreement, so for 

 5   the time being, I'm still looking backwards, as I think 

 6   we just were.

 7       A.    Thank you for that clarification.

 8       Q.    On that score, looking backwards, some of 

 9   your failures to repair -- is that the right word? -- 

10   in 48 hours was apparently due to customers not being 

11   home or somehow they had control in a sense where you 

12   didn't; is that right?

13       A.    Yes, and not in every circumstance.  In very 

14   limited circumstances.

15       Q.    Just isolating that issue and only that 

16   issue, what percent of the failures were due to that, 

17   and if you are not the correct witness, tell me. 

18       A.    No.  I'm actually probably the proper witness 

19   in respect to that analysis.  On Page 8 of the petition 

20   itself --

21       Q.    Is that Line 5?

22       A.    Yes.  And actually, I recall that Ms. Kimball 

23   pointed out our addition was somewhat flawed.  We did 

24   include, if memory serves me right -- we double counted 

25   some numbers here, but this 19.8 percent or roughly 20 
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 1   percent of the 1,224 trouble tickets is a correct 

 2   number.

 3       Q.    The percentage, 19.8 percent, is correct?

 4       A.    I believe it is, yes.  So of the total 

 5   tickets that were not restored in two working days, 

 6   roughly 20 percent of those, or 243, were due to 

 7   customer reasons.

 8       Q.    Then actually, this is as good a place as any 

 9   to look at this question.  The next bullet reports 

10   delay due to major cable outages.  Were all of those 

11   instances, which was 40 percent of the trouble reports 

12   not closed, were all of those instances ones where 

13   Qwest worked 24 hours a day and did everything it could 

14   and yet still couldn't get the job done?

15       A.    Yes, and I might point out that those 486 

16   reports do not represent 100 percent of the repair 

17   calls that we received associated with that major 

18   outage.  They are a subset of that outage, and Qwest 

19   will not actually close a repair report until the 

20   customer confirms that their trouble is restored.

21             So you could have a major cable outage and 

22   have one customer that isn't closed within two working 

23   days because we may have believed that that customer's 

24   trouble was caused by the cable outage, but we want to 

25   confirm with the customer that, in fact, their trouble 
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 1   no longer exists once we've restored the cable outage 

 2   because they could have other circumstances that 

 3   created the trouble in addition to the cable outage.  

 4   So we don't actually close a ticket until we confirm 

 5   with the customer that the outage has been cleared or a 

 6   specified interval has passed in which we can feel 

 7   comfortable the trouble condition has cleared.

 8       Q.    I'm having trouble relating that to this 

 9   second bullet.  That seemed to be about trouble tickets 

10   not cleared because a customer hadn't confirmed as 

11   opposed to trouble tickets not cleared because they 

12   were due to a major outage that you worked on 24 hours 

13   a day straight and couldn't get it fixed.

14       A.    And I apologize for the confusion.  This is a 

15   bit of the discussion Mr. ffitch and I were in.  The 

16   cable outage itself in some cases was restored within 

17   two working days, but we were unable to contact any 

18   customer to confirm their trouble was cleared, so that 

19   report would be included in this count of 486.

20       Q.    So there could have been a major outage that 

21   you did fix, but you had not yet heard back from the 

22   customer?

23       A.    Yes.  So the point I'm trying to make clear 

24   here is of these 486 reports that were delayed due to 

25   the major cable outage, it was not necessarily the 
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 1   outage itself that was the total reason for the 

 2   inability to close it within two working days, but they 

 3   were all triggered by a major outage.

 4       Q.    Do you know of the 486 how many of them were 

 5   due to simply a failure, or not failure, but a lack of 

 6   the customer confirming the trouble had been fixed 

 7   versus it had not really been fixed?

 8       A.    Yes.  We looked at all 486, and I can't give 

 9   you the specific percentage, though I would be glad to 

10   do so in follow-up.  There are a number where we were 

11   unable to close the ticket because we were unable to 

12   reach the customer, and we did provide that detail.  We 

13   actually put a summary of each of the 1,224 trouble 

14   tickets together, and as you look at each ticket, it 

15   would tell you if that were the case, that we were 

16   unable to reach the customer to confirm the condition 

17   was cleared.

18             When we looked at these, I believe 387 of the 

19   486 reports were associated with a cable outage in 

20   Renton that occurred back in February.  I believe it 

21   was February, if memory serves me right.  The remaining 

22   balance or the difference, which is 99, I believe, 

23   tended to be more of that nature.  I can't say that 100 

24   percent were, but a large portion of those 99 reports 

25   could have been conditions where we actually restored 
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 1   the outage but were delayed in being able to close with 

 2   the customer that the service was restored.

 3             Now, I don't want to mislead you either.  I 

 4   don't want to say that in every instance those were 

 5   restored in two working days.  I would have to look at 

 6   each of those 99 tickets.

 7       Q.    Then let me look forward on your request to 

 8   modify the agreement, and I guess there, the first 

 9   question, I guess, is why should the agreement be 

10   modified if, in fact, within the agreement, there is a 

11   mitigation provision?  Why is that provision not 

12   sufficient to address what you might call the equities 

13   or how very close you came to 100 percent?

14       A.    Actually, it is sufficient, I believe.  We 

15   had this same discussion internally.  Our thought 

16   process was that if the commission believed it was 

17   appropriate under the factual record before them in 

18   this matter to mitigate a portion of the credits due 

19   for this measurement that if we had the same 

20   circumstance with the major cable outages or the 

21   customer access, and we reviewed those each month, 

22   because we meet with the commission staff and public 

23   counsel staff each month to go through our results, 

24   that rather than bring this issue before you again that 

25   we could incorporate that in the monthly reports.  That 
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 1   doesn't mean to suggest that we couldn't also simply 

 2   file a petition for mitigation.

 3       Q.    One thing I think I want to point out is the 

 4   difference between a standard that you are either 

 5   trying to achieve or are expected to achieve and 

 6   mitigation.  Mitigation isn't really the same because 

 7   it's an after-the-fact look at what happened and why.  

 8   For example, we have speeding laws, and if the speeding 

 9   zone is 30 miles an hour and the policeman pulls you 

10   over and gives you a ticket for 35, you can go to the 

11   judge, and there is an actual procedure for mitigation.  

12   Not that I've been through it.  I haven't, but there 

13   is, and sometimes they will knock the fine down or 

14   eliminate it, which doesn't mean the speed limit should 

15   be raised to 35.  It's an after-the-fact judgment about 

16   whether, in this case anyway, it's in the public 

17   interest to impose the full credit or not.  Do you 

18   agree with that distinction?

19       A.    I do, but I think there is a consideration 

20   here that I would ask you to think about, particularly 

21   in light of the fact that you are visiting these 

22   standards in another proceeding, the rule-making 

23   proceeding for all companies.

24             What we are suggesting is these are two 

25   circumstances that are not within the company's 
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 1   control.  As a result of that, if the company can 

 2   demonstrate that it is performing properly in the sense 

 3   of attempting to restore service as quickly as possible 

 4   for the customers affected in the case of a major 

 5   outage that the commission ought to recognize a 

 6   modification may be appropriate under that 

 7   circumstance. 

 8             With respect to customer access, we also feel 

 9   that if the company has been at the customer's premise, 

10   which is the case with these trouble reports where 

11   there was actually a technician at the address, and was 

12   unable to gain access, and that may have full well been 

13   when the customer said they would be there and they 

14   weren't, we missed the customer, a variety of reasons 

15   that because the company was physically at the premise 

16   within two working days and was unable to gain access 

17   that that would be an appropriate modification because 

18   the company attempted to meet the standard, so we do 

19   view them a bit differently from that perspective.

20       Q.    I think there is another distinction maybe 

21   which is between a rule-making and a settlement 

22   agreement.  The rule-making truly is prospective, and 

23   perhaps we will have learned something from the Qwest 

24   settlement agreement as to what's practical or not to 

25   put into a rule.  In a rule, we are starting from 
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 1   scratch in a sense and saying, What makes sense, so 

 2   maybe the exception for customer is not home when the 

 3   customer said he or she would be might be such a thing, 

 4   but here we have a settlement agreement, and isn't one 

 5   of the issues how egregious or problematic the flaw, if 

 6   you want to call it that, is in the settlement 

 7   agreement?

 8             We have had other proceedings where there 

 9   have been agreements, and the refrain is, a deal is a 

10   deal, and a deal is a deal, and yet at certain times, 

11   we've said the consequences of this agreement as it is 

12   are so drastic that this is not in the public interest 

13   to maintain.  In this instance, we are talking about, I 

14   guess, a maximum of a million dollars a year that goes 

15   to the ratepayers one way or the other. 

16             So the question is, does this flaw -- let's 

17   take the customer-not-at-home flaw, and I'm putting it 

18   as a flaw from your point of view -- does this rise to 

19   the level of the breaking of an agreement where it 

20   might very well have been, if considered at the outset 

21   or considered in a rule-making, the type of thing you 

22   would make an exception for?

23       A.    I guess what troubles me about this, and I'm 

24   speaking from my personal experience in service quality 

25   standards, is that I think it is important for the 
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 1   commission to acknowledge standards within the 

 2   company's control and to differentiate standards that 

 3   are not within the company's control, because those 

 4   that are not directly within the company's control are 

 5   where I see the mischief occur, and for our customers, 

 6   we have a secondary program, which we are not 

 7   addressing today, which is the individual remedy to the 

 8   customer, the $50 credit for the missed appointment, so 

 9   we have individual customer remedies, and this is kind 

10   of a second customer remedy, which was intended to 

11   address the benefit of the merger, so to speak, or to 

12   insure the benefit of the merger. 

13             So I think this is a bit different from the 

14   standpoint that we are asking the commission to look at 

15   two additional exceptions in terms of determining 

16   whether the company has attained a standard, and we 

17   don't do that lightly and we don't do that without 

18   expecting a full audit of those exclusions and agreeing 

19   to such a thing as we go each month, but we do think 

20   it's important as a message or a decision by the 

21   commission in the sense of when should the company be 

22   held to a standard versus when they shouldn't.

23       Q.    I think I misspoke.  I said that the million 

24   dollars would go to the ratepayers one way or the 

25   other, but on a prospective basis, that would not be 
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 1   true.  The penalties would go to the ratepayers if we 

 2   maintain this agreement and Qwest doesn't meet some 

 3   standard, but if we modify the standard to exclude 

 4   those particular provisions or to include those 

 5   particular exceptions, then that amount of money that 

 6   would otherwise have been paid to the ratepayers 

 7   wouldn't materialize for the ratepayers.  It would be 

 8   company money to use as it uses its money in general.  

 9   I think that's right; isn't it?

10       A.    It is.  There is an indirect benefit to the 

11   ratepayer through a different provision in the 

12   agreement, which is the treatment of rates.  So the 

13   ratepayers should get the benefit of the investment in 

14   some form, and they also get the benefit of the merger 

15   agreement under which rates are protected through, I 

16   believe, 2005, if memory serves me right, or 2003.

17       Q.    For the amount of money involved, it's not 

18   really the money you are focusing on.  It's the policy 

19   of whether we hold you to a standard for events that 

20   are beyond your control despite the fact that you did 

21   at one point agree to them.

22       A.    Yes.

23       Q.    If we were to modify this agreement on a 

24   going-forward basis in the way you would request, isn't 

25   there still a WAC that requires you to make all repairs 
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 1   within 48 hours excluding Sundays, I think it is?

 2       A.    Yes, the two-working-day provision.  That 

 3   commission standard does not go away.  Of course, based 

 4   on our experience and specifics that we have learned, 

 5   we will be addressing that as well in your upcoming 

 6   rule-making.

 7       Q.    I did misspeak.  I was referring to WAC 

 8   480-120-520 Sub 8, which is our current WAC which 

 9   includes all service to be restored within two working 

10   days excluding Sundays and holidays.

11       A.    Yes.

12       Q.    What would be to change if we were to modify 

13   the agreement as you are requesting is that there would 

14   be no automatic credits or penalties.  If you were in 

15   violation of this WAC, the staff would have the option 

16   or the commission itself would have the option to issue 

17   a complaint for violation; is that correct?

18       A.    Yes.  In essence, I think we would be having 

19   a similar discussion at that point.

20             CHAIRWOMAN SHOWALTER:  That's all my 

21   questions for now.  Thank you.

22    

23    

24                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

25   BY COMMISSIONER HEMSTAD: 
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 1       Q.    I'm a bit curious about the thought process 

 2   of the company at the time the settlement was agreed 

 3   upon, and I realize settlements are what they are, and 

 4   at some kind of level, they are bargained for back and 

 5   forth, but this benchmark, I think, is different from 

 6   all of the others in that it says, at least in the 

 7   standard that it sets, all reported interruption shall 

 8   be restored within two business days.  The others talk 

 9   about 90 percent or 99 percent, so 80 percent. 

10             So the company must have been quite conscious 

11   of the standard of "all," and I assume then that 

12   knowing that that's in itself probably an impossible 

13   standard to meet that the reduction from that standard 

14   would be taken up in the exception.  Is that more or 

15   less the process the company thought this through?

16       A.    I think that your summary of the decision is 

17   accurate.  There were really two elements.  One is the 

18   product of negotiation and the give and take that 

19   occurs with that in terms of all of the standards and 

20   what the company would agree to.  That said, the 

21   company's focus on this standard as a product of that 

22   negotiation was to attempt to identify, and we believe 

23   we identified those exceptions that would prevent us 

24   from attaining the standard, and so our focus was on 

25   that effort, the best we were able to perform it under 
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 1   a limited time frame.

 2       Q.    In retrospect then, the problem was that your 

 3   listing of exceptions wasn't long enough. 

 4       A.    Correct.  What we have discovered is that 

 5   there were some additional circumstances beyond the 

 6   company's control that we would like to include now 

 7   through our request for modification.

 8       Q.    Now would like to include?

 9       A.    Yes.

10       Q.    From the response from public counsel and 

11   staff, if one goes back to the negotiating going on at 

12   the time of the settlement, I can infer from their 

13   comments that they would have strongly resisted the 

14   exceptions you are now proposing.  

15       A.    I don't want to speak on behalf of the 

16   parties.  I think the negotiation was a healthy give 

17   and take by all parties.  What I would share, 

18   Commissioner Hemstad, in relationship to the point you 

19   are making is that I think we have to step back to what 

20   was the intent, and there was a lot of concern at that 

21   time by this commission and the parties as to what they 

22   could expect from Qwest, and quite honestly, service 

23   was a pretty serious issue, and Qwest came in 

24   committing to fix service, and Qwest has done that, and 

25   I believe -- this is my opinion as one of the parties 
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 1   to this negotiation -- that the purpose of this 

 2   settlement agreement was to insure that the ratepayer 

 3   wasn't harmed first, and second, that they actually 

 4   benefitted from the merger. 

 5             I believe the standard set forth in this 

 6   program drove the behavior that the parties and this 

 7   commission was seeking in approving this agreement, and 

 8   that is service improvement, and you can see that in 

 9   almost every area that's measured as part of this 

10   agreement.  The installation area, specifically in the 

11   maintenance area, has dramatically improved from where 

12   we were at that point in time, and I believe this 

13   program has driven that behavior. 

14             Now, the specifics may vary, but Qwest has 

15   been very committed to improving service and continues 

16   to be committed to improving service, and I think that 

17   is an important consideration, and I don't think that 

18   mitigation or modification changes the behavior or the 

19   objective that this settlement agreement is designed to 

20   accomplish.

21       Q.    So in this petition now, you want us both to 

22   change the standard itself and to expand the 

23   exceptions?

24       A.    That is correct, but only to the extent where 

25   they are due to circumstances beyond the company's 
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 1   control.  The company will still pay credits 

 2   potentially, hopefully not, but could still potentially 

 3   pay credits even with those modifications.

 4       Q.    I notice you use the term "credit."  The 

 5   petition talks about "penalty."  I assume you would 

 6   agree the correct word is "credit" not "penalty"?

 7       A.    Under the settlement agreement the term is 

 8   "credit."

 9       Q.    I'm curious about your reference to the 

10   dollar amount would be better spent invested.  The 

11   dollars are fundable.  You are talking about next 

12   year's budget, the budget in the multihundreds of 

13   million dollars, at least historically in the hundreds 

14   of millions of dollars, in operational costs.  How 

15   would anyone know, even if identified, that you would 

16   use some number, one million dollars or $667,000, for 

17   something dealing with the service quality because you 

18   have a budget for that?  In a circumstance, this is a 

19   hiccup on that budget.

20       A.    The company can demonstrate to the commission 

21   how these funds were spent and specifically what they 

22   were spent on in terms of what kind of equipment and so 

23   forth was purchased and separately identify that from 

24   the rest of its budget.  We actually do that with all 

25   what we call "commission mandates," which are typically 
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 1   results of the agreements the company has made with the 

 2   commission in some form, so we do separately track 

 3   those.  They are, in essence, a separate budget that's 

 4   managed by the policy and law department. 

 5             So while I understand what you are saying, 

 6   the company will separately track that investment and 

 7   can present to the commission the specifics as to how 

 8   it was spent as an option.  The commission again can 

 9   participate in that process as well.

10       Q.    Reference has been made to the rule that also 

11   talks about the 100 percent requirement would be met.  

12   My own sense of the rule like that is aspirational, 

13   because the very reason is almost impossible to expect 

14   that there won't be a single exception to it.  So in 

15   that sense, this bargain for arrangement is quite 

16   different than the rule because since these credits 

17   were, as well as the exceptions -- in that sense, the 

18   settlement is quite different from the rule itself;  

19   isn't that true?

20       A.    That is true. 

21       Q.    I'm sure you've read Dr. Blackmon's 

22   testimony.

23       A.    Yes, I have.

24       Q.    On a going-forward basis, he's offering a 

25   couple of alternative modifications that the staff had 
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 1   proposed.  I'm a little bit uncertain how to treat 

 2   this.  The company is asking for mitigation, and staff 

 3   is going to say we ought to consider making some other 

 4   changes.  In a certain sense, that really becomes a 

 5   reopening of the settlement to deal with this issue in 

 6   a different way.  That procedural question aside, what 

 7   is your reaction to his proposals?

 8       A.    We've spent quite a bit of time looking at 

 9   Mr. Blackmon's proposals and discussing those 

10   internally.  The difficulty that we find with his 

11   proposals is the timing associated with this program in 

12   that this program continues, I believe, for three 

13   years, 2001 being the first year.  We are into 2002, 

14   and then 2003, at which time the company may petition 

15   the commission to terminate the program, obviously 

16   based on performance at that point in time and a review 

17   of performance.

18             We have spent the early part of 2000 focusing 

19   on attempting to meet these standards.  It was never 

20   the intent of Qwest to render credits.  It was always 

21   the intent of Qwest to meet these standards, and 

22   therefore, we have modified our processes and our 

23   procedures to drive that result.  If we change the 

24   measure, then we have to relook at the processes that 

25   we have in place because it may drive a different set 
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 1   of behaviors or a different process or procedure, and 

 2   for that reason, we don't think that it's appropriate 

 3   to make the changes of the nature that Dr. Blackmon 

 4   offers or suggests.  There is some conceptual ideas 

 5   that we found attractive, but when you relate it to the 

 6   principle of his specific suggestion, we felt it was 

 7   better to stay under our current program, that there 

 8   was no added benefit.

 9       Q.    Again, I'm not sure quite how we get there, 

10   but I assume you would agree that the premise of 

11   Dr. Blackmon's alternative modifications is a more 

12   direct performance incentive than that which is there 

13   now, even under your proposed modification to a 99.5 

14   percent standard.

15       A.    Actually, some aspects of it, yes, others no, 

16   but in one single proposal, we didn't see an absolute 

17   yes.  Mr. Jones may address that as well, but I think 

18   perhaps a good way of summarizing it is there continued 

19   to be no recognition of those instances that were not 

20   within the company's control.

21       Q.    From the petition, the company is not asking 

22   for mitigation of the other credits?

23       A.    That's correct.

24       Q.    Your testimony is that it was your intention 

25   to meet all of these standards.  For example, in the 
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 1   complaint response, there is now a one-million-dollar 

 2   credit having missed all 12 months.  Do you have any 

 3   response to your explanation for that?

 4       A.    I do, and I'm glad you brought that up.  That 

 5   is clearly a standard the company never intended to 

 6   miss, and while you look at the data in terms of 

 7   performance, it's somewhat misleading.  We specifically 

 8   have focused very closely on this particular measure 

 9   and policy and law as it seems quite apparent that you 

10   should never miss that standard.  In fact, I would tell 

11   you that your commission staff works very well with our 

12   organization in terms of granting expenses, ones that 

13   are necessary.

14             Our petition points out that we missed all 12 

15   months.  For the fourth quarter of 2000 in many 

16   instances, it was one complaint that was missed, and I 

17   am happy and pleased to tell you that we finally 

18   attained a month where we did not miss it, which is 

19   just February of this year, but it's quite honestly 

20   human error where we failed to respond within the 

21   commission's interval, and there truly is no excuse for 

22   it.

23       Q.    I guess I would make the general comment that 

24   it would appear to be another example of your statement 

25   is correct.  The severity of the missing the standard 
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 1   is you miss it, you miss it, and the consequences are 

 2   the same if you miss it by a small amount or a large 

 3   amount.

 4       A.    I think the difference, Commissioner Hemstad, 

 5   and I'm probably partial which is bit of a personal 

 6   opinion, is that the standard for responding to 

 7   commission complaints is one within the company's 

 8   control, and it is a management and personnel issue, 

 9   and we have instituted a number of process changes and 

10   personnel changes in attempts to meet this standard.

11             I'm disappointed that we failed to meet it 

12   for even one month in 2001 because it is something 

13   within the company's control.  There are human errors 

14   that happen, and I don't mean to suggest that every 

15   employee is perfect, but clearly, when there is this 

16   type of monetary value associated with it, we can 

17   institute changes to try to make sure it doesn't fall 

18   short.

19             COMMISSIONER HEMSTAD:  That's all I have for 

20   now.

21    

22    

23                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

24   BY COMMISSIONER OSHIE: 

25       Q.    I just have a clarification question, 
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 1   Ms. Jensen, and that's a response to Chairwoman 

 2   Showalter's question about the use of the funds that 

 3   would be potentially mitigated, and as I understand 

 4   your response, you testified that the commission could 

 5   take essentially the two-thirds of the million dollars 

 6   and direct that those funds be allocated to a specific 

 7   program within the company.

 8       A.    Yes.

 9       Q.    Also that the company and the staff, if you 

10   will, and the commission could develop a program in 

11   which those funds could be directed.

12       A.    That's correct.

13       Q.    And also that another option that the company 

14   would not disagree with would be to in some other way 

15   reinvest those moneys within the state of Washington.

16       A.    That's a fairly broad statement, but yes.

17       Q.    I think that comes from your testimony.

18       A.    Yes.  I hesitate in the sense that I think 

19   what you are referencing is that the company could make 

20   the decision as to how to invest the 667 in the state 

21   of Washington.

22       Q.    That's right.

23       A.    Yes.

24             COMMISSIONER OSHIE:  Thank you.  No other 

25   questions.
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 1                  FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION

 2   BY CHAIRWOMAN SHOWALTER: 

 3       Q.    I have one more.  I was looking for a 

 4   document and now I found it.  It's Dr. Blackmon's 

 5   GB-376 that's attached to his testimony.

 6             MS. JOHNSTON:  Which is Exhibit 509.

 7       Q.    Do you have that, Ms. Jensen?

 8       A.    Yes, I do.

 9       Q.    I'm looking at the bottom table, and I 

10   believe what this is is Dr. Blackmon's representation 

11   of how the different exceptions that you are proposing 

12   would play out in terms of numbers and then ultimately 

13   in terms of a credit, and I guess the first question I 

14   want to ask you, do you agree that with these numbers 

15   and percentages on here, is this the effect of your 

16   proposal?

17       A.    I believe it is, yes.

18       Q.    I'm looking at the second to last right-hand 

19   column with the percentages in it.

20       A.    Yes.

21       Q.    And the first thing that strikes me is that 

22   if we do not change the 100 percent standard, at least 

23   looking backwards, you would have paid in every month 

24   anyway; is that correct?

25       A.    That is correct.
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 1       Q.    But that if we do change the standard to 

 2   99.5, you would have not paid in any month; is that 

 3   correct?

 4       A.    For 2001, yes.

 5       Q.    Then I think looking at the middle column 

 6   labeled, "Qwest exception for major cable outage" -- I 

 7   take that back.  Because there are -- sorry about this.  

 8   I should be looking at the previous two columns there.  

 9   If we made an exception prospectively for tickets left 

10   open in error and customer at fault, then as I see it, 

11   in six of the months, you would not have paid a penalty 

12   because it's in six other months -- I'm sorry.  In five 

13   months, there would have been a major outage, and if 

14   that were not an exception, you would have paid 

15   something, even 100 percent standard.

16       A.    Actually, Chairwoman Showalter, I did bring 

17   an exhibit that provides that information on a monthly 

18   basis for each exclusion.

19       Q.    I think that's what I'm looking for.  I'm 

20   just trying to measure how these make a difference if 

21   there is or isn't an exclusion for some element, and 

22   then secondly or also the 100 percent versus the 99.5.

23       A.    And I'm not sure if you are ready for a 

24   break...

25             MS. JOHNSTON:  I would just like to inquire 
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 1   as to why this exhibit wasn't distributed in advance of 

 2   the hearing.

 3             JUDGE MOSS:  Qwest apparently didn't intend 

 4   to make it an exhibit but is offering it in response to 

 5   a question from the Bench.

 6             MS. ANDERL:  That's precisely it.

 7             JUDGE MOSS:  It's not like they are springing 

 8   it on you.

 9             THE WITNESS:  Actually, Ms. Johnston, it was 

10   provided as one of the discovery responses but it 

11   wasn't...

12             JUDGE MOSS:  My understanding is that this is 

13   something the Bench wishes to have.

14             CHAIRWOMAN SHOWALTER:  Yes, and I think 

15   furthermore, we are talking about mathematical tables, 

16   I think.  It's not anything that couldn't be done off 

17   of Dr. Blackmon's exhibits with numbers.  It's just 

18   that the individual percentages haven't been 

19   calculated.

20             MS. JOHNSTON:  I would like to insure that 

21   staff has an opportunity to respond to this, and my 

22   concern stems in part because in response to a recent 

23   question from the Bench, Qwest has essentially orally 

24   amended its petition to talk about the disposition of 

25   funds in the event they are mitigated and programs 
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 1   internally.  So I'm not asking that Dr. Blackmon be 

 2   afforded the opportunity to supplement his testimony in 

 3   writing, but I do want to make sure that he has an 

 4   opportunity to respond to the latest amendment.

 5             CHAIRWOMAN SHOWALTER:  But what I'm asking 

 6   for here is a mechanical representation of the 

 7   different numbers and percentages.

 8             THE WITNESS:  This was provided in response 

 9   to Staff Data Request No. 12.

10             JUDGE MOSS:  I'm going to mark for 

11   identification Exhibit No. 513 as the Qwest response to 

12   Staff Data Request No. 12, and I'll mark it as being 

13   solicited by the Bench.  So Ms. Johnston, there will be 

14   an opportunity for inquiry after the Bench is finished 

15   either from you or Mr. ffitch prior to redirect, so you 

16   will have that opportunity as well as any other 

17   opportunity you might ask for.

18             MS. JOHNSTON:  Your Honor, I just have one 

19   other question.  I note that this exhibit is marked 

20   confidential, and I'm curious as to why that would be 

21   the case or if it's intended to be designated 

22   confidential.

23             THE WITNESS:  It was intended to be 

24   confidential, and I would be glad to discuss that with 

25   Mr. Jones if there is any concern.
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 1             JUDGE MOSS:  Let's see if we can get that 

 2   assertion of confidentiality waived.  If it is nothing 

 3   more than a mathematical manipulation of Exhibit No. 

 4   509, then I can't see why there would be 

 5   confidentiality.

 6             THE WITNESS:  Your Honor, feel free to remove 

 7   it.

 8             MS. JOHNSTON:  I also believe this appears in 

 9   Mr. Jones' testimony at Page 8, so the testimony has 

10   not been designated confidential.

11             JUDGE MOSS:  It's not confidential.  We are 

12   clear on that.

13       Q.    (By Chairwoman Showalter)  I can look at this 

14   at my leisure later, but I think the point I was just 

15   trying to determine from Dr. Blackmon's exhibit was 

16   that if there were exceptions for both tickets left 

17   open in error and customer at fault, and those did not 

18   count, but there were no exceptions for major cable 

19   outage, it would have the effect of last year the 

20   company paying a credit in five months and not paying 

21   in seven months; is that correct?  And now I'm looking 

22   for a comparison in your paperwork, but I don't see it 

23   yet. 

24       A.    I believe it's on the first page, and in 

25   essence, under our request, we would miss January, 
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 1   February, July, and December with those two 

 2   modifications.  Those months would still not attain the 

 3   99.5, so I think it's four months, if I'm reading this 

 4   correctly.

 5       Q.    In any event, I'll look at this.  It seems to 

 6   be the same thing.  I have to do a little bit of mental 

 7   eyeballing, and I can get it for myself.  Thank you.

 8             JUDGE MOSS:  Does that complete the Bench 

 9   questions?  Ms. Johnston, did you wish to have any 

10   further cross-examination based on the questions from 

11   the Bench? 

12             MS. JOHNSTON:  Yes, Your Honor.  May I ask 

13   two questions?

14             JUDGE MOSS:  Yes.

15    

16    

17                  FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION

18   BY MS. JOHNSTON:

19       Q.    Ms. Jensen, I believe -- you see if you agree 

20   with me -- that the response to Chairwoman Showalter's 

21   questions appears on the top half of Page 2 of your 

22   Exhibit 513.  It reflects the categories there, the 

23   number of tickets missed due to customer reasons, and 

24   going over, you see, not closed within two working 

25   days, completed but not closed?
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 1       A.    Yes.

 2       Q.    Then would you agree that this would show 

 3   that there were two months, the months of February and 

 4   December, where you didn't miss it?

 5       A.    That is correct.  That's why I need to bring 

 6   these notes with me.

 7       Q.    Then also in response to questioning by 

 8   Chairwoman Showalter, you explained how Qwest does not 

 9   close the tickets until the customer confirms that the 

10   service is, in fact, working.  Do you recall that 

11   testimony?

12       A.    Yes, I do.

13       Q.    Is that a new procedure, or was that the same 

14   procedure that was in place when U S West was the phone 

15   company?

16       A.    I think Mr. Jones needs to address that 

17   question.  I don't know.

18             MS. JOHNSTON:  I have no further questions.  

19   Thank you.

20             JUDGE MOSS:  Mr. ffitch, did you have any 

21   anything as a result of the Bench's questions?

22             MR. FFITCH:  Just one question, Your Honor.

23    

24    

25                              
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 1                  FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION

 2   BY MR. FFITCH:

 3       Q.    Separate from the service quality performance 

 4   program, Qwest committed in the merger agreement to 

 5   make investments in its infrastructure in Washington 

 6   State, did it not?

 7       A.    Yes, it did.

 8       Q.    It also committed to expand its fiber optic 

 9   capabilities separately from the service quality 

10   performance program.

11       A.    It committed to a number of interoffice 

12   facility routes that would be fiber, yes.

13       Q.    And it also committed to eliminate analog 

14   switches separately from the service quality 

15   performance program.

16       A.    Yes, it did.

17       Q.    And to expand some service to currently 

18   unserved areas separately from the service quality 

19   performance program?

20       A.    Within Qwest territory, yes.

21       Q.    Do you disagree that the service quality 

22   performance program was adopted as an incentive for the 

23   company to make additional investments necessary to 

24   meet the service quality commitments that it made in 

25   the merger agreement?
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 1       A.    If I can just check your question, I think 

 2   you asked me if I disagreed with that statement?

 3       Q.    Do you disagree with that statement?

 4       A.    I do disagree with that statement.  I don't 

 5   believe that the service standards are necessarily tied 

 6   to increase investment in all cases.  There may be some 

 7   standards that required additional investment or could 

 8   be better attained with additional investment.

 9             MR. FFITCH:  I don't have any further 

10   questions.

11             JUDGE MOSS:  Any redirect?

12    

13    

14                    REDIRECT EXAMINATION

15   BY MS. ANDERL: 

16       Q.    Ms. Jensen, Ms. Johnston and Mr. ffitch both 

17   asked you to read certain passages out of the 

18   transcript from the merger settlement hearing.  Do you 

19   recall that?

20       A.    Yes, I do.

21       Q.    Upon reflection of those passages that you 

22   read, is there anything in those passages that you 

23   believe is inconsistent with the request that Qwest is 

24   making here today?

25       A.    No, there are not.
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 1       Q.    Do you believe that there is anything in 

 2   those passages that -- I think that that would be the 

 3   same question.

 4             MS. ANDERL:  That's all.

 5             COMMISSIONER HEMSTAD:  I have one follow-up 

 6   question.

 7    

 8    

 9                  FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION

10   BY COMMISSIONER HEMSTAD:

11       Q.    I was rather surprised at your answer to 

12   Mr. ffitch's question that the service standards are 

13   not related to the Qwest commitment to make additional 

14   investments in this state.  I would have thought the 

15   answer would have been the other way around. 

16       A.    I think that U S West's failure to meet 

17   certain standards in some cases may be related to 

18   investment, in all cases may not have been solely 

19   investment, and perhaps Mr. Jones can better address 

20   the relationship to investment.

21       Q.    Are we talking about capital investments or 

22   increases in operational -- when the term "investment" 

23   is used, what is your understanding of what is meant by 

24   that?

25       A.    Capital investment.
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 1             JUDGE MOSS:  Ms. Jensen, I believe that your 

 2   time on the stand has come to an end, and I'll let you 

 3   step down now.  Thank you very much for your testimony.  

 4   Perhaps this would be a good opportunity to take a 

 5   brief recess.

 6             (Recess.)

 7             JUDGE MOSS:  I'll correct the record.  I 

 8   misspoke at the outset and stated that the merger was 

 9   approved by the order entered on June 19th, 1999.  It 

10   was year 2000.  Mr. Jones, if you would rise and raise 

11   your right hand, please.

12             (Witness sworn.)

13    

14    

15                     DIRECT EXAMINATION

16   BY MS. ANDERL:

17       Q.    Mr. Jones, could you please state your name 

18   and business address for the record?

19       A.    Robert L. Jones; work address, 1600 Seventh 

20   Avenue, Seattle, Washington, zip code 98191, and then 

21   Room 1801.

22       Q.    Mr. Jones, do you have before you the 

23   testimony that's been marked as Exhibit 503?

24       A.    Yes, I do.

25       Q.    Do you have any changes or corrections to 
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 1   make to this testimony?

 2       A.    Yes, I do.  Just one minor modification.  On 

 3   Page 1 where it talks about my background and work 

 4   experience, I was at Pacific Bell between 1985 and 1993 

 5   and then joined U S West, which would then be the Qwest 

 6   and its predecessors.

 7             MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, we can file a 

 8   corrected page to correct that change.

 9       Q.    Other than that, Mr. Jones, is your testimony 

10   true and correct to the best of your knowledge?

11       A.    Yes, it is.

12             MS. ANDERL:  Your Honor, we would offer 

13   Exhibit 503 and tender the witness for cross.

14             JUDGE MOSS:  Is there any objection to 503? 

15   It will be admitted as marked, and I will note for the 

16   record we premarked Exhibits 504 through 506, which are 

17   respectively the Qwest responses to Staff Data Requests 

18   Nos. 9, 10 and 11 and that the parties have stipulated 

19   to the admission of those exhibits, so they will also 

20   be the admitted at this time as marked.  Mr. Jones is 

21   ready for cross-examination; Mr. Johnston?

22    

23    

24                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

25   BY MS. JOHNSTON: 
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 1       Q.    Good afternoon, Mr. Jones.  I think I'll 

 2   first pick up the questions that Ms. Jensen deferred to 

 3   you.  If the company were to receive a trouble report 

 4   at 6 a.m. on a Friday, when would the 48-hour period 

 5   expire?

 6       A.    Technically, 48 hours from Friday would be 

 7   6 p.m. Sunday from a strictly time measurement 

 8   standpoint.

 9             CHAIRWOMAN SHOWALTER:  You mean 6 a.m.?

10             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

11       Q.    (By Ms. Johnston)  In that circumstance, when 

12   would the two-working-day interval expire?

13       A.    I believe technically that would be Monday at 

14   6 a.m. since Sunday would be viewed as a nonbusiness 

15   day.

16       Q.    Would it be 6 a.m. or whenever the company 

17   and crew stops working?

18       A.    It would be when the clock starts ticking as 

19   far as when the trouble is received, and then the time 

20   period for the day of Sunday would be excluded from 

21   that measurement, and the clock would pick up again at 

22   12:01 Monday morning.

23       Q.    But when would the two-working-day interval 

24   expire then?  Would it be when the crews go home and go 

25   to bed or a time certain on Monday?
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 1       A.    The two-working-day measurement is from 12:01 

 2   a.m. on a Monday to 11:59 p.m. on a Sunday, and time is 

 3   measured between those intervals as far as applying to 

 4   the two-working-day standard.

 5       Q.    In response to questioning by Chairwoman 

 6   Showalter, Ms. Jensen explained how Qwest does not 

 7   close a ticket until the customer confirms that the 

 8   service is restored.  To your knowledge, is that 

 9   procedure new with Qwest, or was that the procedure 

10   when U S West was the telephone company?

11       A.    I don't recall a specific change and a 

12   definite practice or policy relating to closing tickets 

13   and confirming with customers that was before or after 

14   the merger.  I do know that in terms of major cable 

15   outages, we do confirm with all customers before 

16   closing those tickets. 

17             The statement, I would say, is generally 

18   speaking, we confirm with customers in closing tickets.  

19   If it's not a major outage and it's, I would say, in 

20   the minor category, if not able to reach the customer, 

21   we may do such things as go to the door with a cell 

22   phone, call the customer's telephone number, and if we 

23   hear it ringing inside their house, we are going to 

24   confirm that, in fact, they have dial tone working and 

25   will close out that ticket.
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 1       Q.    Your title is senior vice president in the 

 2   Northwest network operations division; is that right?

 3       A.    That's correct.

 4       Q.    Does this mean that all of the employees and 

 5   contractors at Qwest who are responsible for clearing 

 6   out-of-service conditions report to you?  It's not a 

 7   trick question. 

 8       A.    There is one aspect in the network operation 

 9   that does not report to me here in the Northwest as far 

10   as clearing a trouble ticket.  That's why I was causing 

11   to process that.  The answer to your question is yes, 

12   they do report to me.

13       Q.    Were you an employee of U S West at the time 

14   of the merger?

15       A.    I was.

16       Q.    Did you participate in the developement of 

17   the service quality performance program?

18       A.    On an extremely limited basis in terms of a 

19   question was asked of me, but as far as, I think, 

20   participating from an analysis recommendation or 

21   influencing the standards that were taken, I would say 

22   no, I was not.

23       Q.    Did you not participate then in the 

24   development of the out-of-service restoration measure 

25   that is the subject of this proceeding?
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 1       A.    I participated in a very limited basis.

 2       Q.    Could you please describe the level of 

 3   involvement and how?

 4       A.    The question was asked of me in terms of what 

 5   would be a recommended standard that I believe I could 

 6   deliver on that I would offer as a recommendation.  I 

 7   offered a number that was not 100 percent.

 8       Q.    Did you advise U S West at the time to insist 

 9   on exclusions either for customer caused misses or for 

10   major cable cuts?

11       A.    I did not.

12       Q.    Please turn to Page 2 of your testimony, 

13   Exhibit 503.

14       A.    I have it.

15       Q.    At Line 3, you say that you did a, 

16   quote/unquote, very detailed review of each ticket not 

17   closed within two business days.  Do you see that 

18   testimony?

19       A.    I do, yes.

20       Q.    Did the company conduct a similar very 

21   detailed review of each ticket that was closed within 

22   the two business days?

23       A.    No, we have not.

24       Q.    Is it accurate to state that out of the 

25   233,000 out-of-service tickets, the company selected 
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 1   1,381 for the detailed review?

 2       A.    No, it is not.  The company selected all 

 3   tickets that were greater than two working days for 

 4   restoration, so we did not sample the larger population 

 5   in a way to come up with this number.  We specifically 

 6   targeted those that were greater than two working days 

 7   for restoration.

 8       Q.    Page 2 of your testimony at Line 8, you 

 9   testified that the company, quote, did everything it 

10   reasonably could have done in order to meet the two-day 

11   standard, end quote.  Do you recall that testimony?

12       A.    Yes, I do.

13       Q.    Is it your understanding that the settlement 

14   agreement allows Qwest to exclude trouble tickets where 

15   it did everything it reasonably could have done?

16       A.    Can you ask your question again, please?

17       Q.    Sure.  Is it your understanding that the 

18   settlement agreement in the merger proceeding allows 

19   Qwest to exclude trouble tickets where it did 

20   everything it reasonably could have done?  Is that the 

21   standard, to your knowledge?

22       A.    I don't have a specific memory of the set of 

23   exclusions in terms of the measurement of service that 

24   is restored greater than two working days, so it's 

25   really hard for me to answer your question directly.
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 1       Q.    At Page 2, Line 17, you refer to the, 

 2   quote/unquote, unusual circumstances associated with 

 3   restoring 486 reports due to cable damages.  Do you see 

 4   that?

 5       A.    Yes, I do.

 6       Q.    How many separate incidents are represented 

 7   by those 486 out-of-service reports?  Wouldn't the 

 8   answer to my question be 11?

 9       A.    On the bottom of Page 6 in terms of the other 

10   outages associated with major cable cuts plus the 

11   Renton outage I believe is the answer to your question, 

12   6 on top of Page 7.

13       Q.    And the total is 11?

14       A.    In Renton, 11, yes.

15       Q.    When you refer to these as, quote/unquote, 

16   unusual circumstances, do you mean it's unusual to 

17   experience 11 separate incidences in a given year?

18       A.    No.  It is unusual for us when we have a 

19   major cable cut to not be able to restore it in two 

20   working days.  Given our level of preparedness and how 

21   we respond to them, when it goes beyond that, we 

22   generally view it as somewhat extraordinary, given the 

23   size of the outage, the number of customers impacted, 

24   and the difficulty in working in the environment from 

25   the physical standpoint in trying to get at facilities 
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 1   as well as repair them.  It becomes a challenge that is 

 2   unusual from the standpoint that we often have to be 

 3   creative in terms of how we address it, and standard 

 4   procedures don't necessarily allow us to get there in 

 5   the same time frame.

 6       Q.    Now, in the year before Qwest asked the 

 7   commission to approve the service quality performance 

 8   program as part of the merger approval, how many of 

 9   these, quote/unquote, major cable cuts occurred?

10       A.    I don't have that number with me today.  I'm 

11   not sure I would be able to go back and recreate that 

12   number from history just given the passage of time.  I 

13   do know from having this standard in place and the 

14   focus of trying to reach perfection in delivering it, 

15   it has certainly sharpened our focus in terms of 

16   analyzing when we have repair situations and really 

17   studying them closely to make sure that we are learning 

18   from each one from the time before how we can get 

19   better if we face a similar circumstance in the future.  

20   So I think in terms of our capability of responding to 

21   these, we are getting stronger, but to go back and 

22   recreate what has happened prior to the merger, I don't 

23   think I could meet that request.

24       Q.    Please turn to Page 5 of your testimony.

25       A.    Yes.
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 1       Q.    At Line 12, you testified that Qwest does not 

 2   close trouble tickets until the trouble is cleared or 

 3   it cannot find the trouble.  In that testimony, are you 

 4   stating the corporate policy with regard to closing 

 5   trouble tickets, or are you testifying that no Qwest 

 6   employee ever closes a trouble ticket prematurely?

 7       A.    What I'm saying is our process is when we 

 8   take a report for a customer who is without service, we 

 9   will make an effort to restore that service and verify 

10   the restoration has been completed. 

11             If we cannot verify with the customer, and 

12   what happens is after 72 hours, we then will run an 

13   automatic test to then from a systems standpoint try to 

14   verify that service is still working.  If that's the 

15   case and we get that confirmation back, then we do 

16   close that ticket.

17       Q.    On that same page at Line 18, you testified 

18   that repeat trouble reports are generally not for the 

19   same condition previously reported.  Why did you 

20   qualify your statement with the use of the term 

21   "generally"?

22       A.    In terms of the preponderance of repeat 

23   reports that happens in the network operation, 

24   generally, there are on average between eight to ten 

25   connection points and physically having a circuit out 
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 1   there that brings a dial tone to the customer. 

 2             We could be out repairing, in which is often 

 3   the case, you have a trouble report that's taken, using 

 4   the test equipment, you identify where the trouble is 

 5   and you go out and repair that.  It is not unusual to 

 6   have a subsequent report come in for trouble in a 

 7   different portion or a different segment of the network 

 8   then where the original trouble was taken in.  So when 

 9   I say "generally" in the preponderance of cases, it's a 

10   somewhat related event to the first causal accident 

11   that caused the trouble.

12       Q.    Is it accurate to state that Qwest does not 

13   know how many trouble tickets are reported as restored 

14   within two working days, but the ticket was actually 

15   closed by an employee in error?

16       A.    There is no tracking of tickets being closed 

17   in error, and I'm not aware of tickets that are closed 

18   in error that would cause us to have a need of tracking 

19   in place, so I'm struggling with the question.

20       Q.    I suppose I could direct your attention to 

21   Staff Data Request Nos. 10 and 11 that have been 

22   admitted as Exhibits 505 and 506, but I think I'll just 

23   ask the question again.  Is it true or false that Qwest 

24   does not know how many trouble tickets are reported as 

25   restored within two working days, but the ticket was 
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 1   actually closed by an employee in error?  Is that true 

 2   or false?

 3       A.    I'm not aware of it occurring, so I would say 

 4   that Qwest is not aware or have tracking.

 5       Q.    Does Qwest measure employees or supervisors 

 6   on their success rate at promptly clearing 

 7   out-of-service reports?

 8       A.    Yes, we do.

 9       Q.    Does any part of the employee or supervisor 

10   compensation depend on their success rate?

11       A.    Individually no.  From a company standpoint 

12   and from a regional perspective, yes.

13       Q.    Let's turn to the table in your testimony on 

14   Page 4.

15       A.    Yes.

16       Q.    Qwest is excluding 211 tickets, and then it 

17   says, were completed but not closed within two working 

18   days; is that correct?

19       A.    Yes.

20       Q.    Would you agree that if even one tenth of one 

21   percent of the tickets closed within two working days 

22   were closed in error, that is a bigger error than the 

23   211 that Qwest has decided to exclude?

24       A.    That was one tenth of one percent? 

25       Q.    That's correct.
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 1       A.    Is that .001?

 2       Q.    Yes.

 3       A.    I believe that number would be 233, which is 

 4   greater than the number 211.

 5       Q.    When you measure the performance of the 

 6   organizations that restores out-of-service conditions, 

 7   do you measure the number of trouble tickets cleared 

 8   within two working days, or do you use the number 

 9   cleared within 24 hours?

10       A.    I use both numbers as well as the standard 

11   out there that from a commitment time with customers, 

12   if we miss those commitments, there is the $50 credit 

13   they received, so in terms of measuring our overall 

14   service performance when it comes in the repair 

15   category, I'm looking at all three of those components.

16             CHAIRWOMAN SHOWALTER:  Ms. Johnston, I want 

17   to make sure I understood your question.  You 

18   juxtaposed two working days versus 24 hours.  Is that 

19   what you meant to do?

20             MS. JOHNSTON:  That's correct.

21       Q.    (By Ms. Johnston)  Does the company place a 

22   higher priority on clearing out-of-service conditions 

23   than on clearing trouble reports that do not report 

24   interruptions, such as a scratchy line?

25       A.    Our prioritization in terms of how we address 

01703

 1   our work on the day and from a strategy standpoint is 

 2   first any out-of-service condition, and we prioritize 

 3   any out-of-service condition first by going after FAA 

 4   circuits, police, fire, critical services, hospitals, 

 5   and then working into the general population of 

 6   out-of-service.

 7       Q.    So the answer to my question would be yes?

 8       A.    It would be.

 9       Q.    Please turn to Page 8 of your testimony.  

10   There you discuss the company's request to exclude 

11   misses due to access to customer premises, or rather 

12   lack of access to customer premises; is that correct?

13       A.    That's correct.

14       Q.    Your testimony at Page 3, not that you need 

15   to turn there, Page 3, Line 2 is that 19.8 percent of 

16   the reports that were not cleared within two business 

17   days were due to the need to access customer premises.  

18   Do you recall that testimony?  You can turn there if 

19   you want to.

20       A.    I'm going to turn back.

21       Q.    Page 3, Line 2.

22       A.    That is my testimony.

23       Q.    Now staying on Page 3, at Line 4, you go on 

24   to say, this is, quote/unquote, usual because 84 

25   percent of trouble reports are cleared without the need 
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 1   for access to customer premises; is that correct?

 2       A.    It does say that, and I think that I would 

 3   probably rephrase the implication there in terms of how 

 4   you are reading it.  I think the 84 percent represents 

 5   our out-of-service repair performance in 2000 prior to 

 6   going into the new service standard.  I think it's 

 7   measuring the improvement we made from one year to the 

 8   next. 

 9             Actually, I think it's not even that.  I 

10   think what it's indicating is we are restoring 84 

11   percent of them we don't encounter access problems in 

12   reaching the customer.  Why the math isn't consistent 

13   there, I will have to review that.

14       Q.    Maybe you can help me understand this.  Is 

15   the 16 percent figure that appears on Page 8 comparable 

16   to the 19.8 percent figure?  What is the relationship 

17   between the two?

18             MS. ANDERL:  I'm sorry, Ms. Johnston --

19             MS. JOHNSTON:  At Page 8, Line 7, there is a 

20   reference to 16 percent trouble report.

21             THE WITNESS:  The other part of your 

22   question, what does that refer to? 

23       Q.    (By Ms. Johnston)  How does that 16 percent 

24   figure relate to the 19.8 percent figure that you 

25   testified is not cleared within two business days due 
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 1   to access to customer premises?

 2       A.    What we are saying is on Page 8 at Line 6, 

 3   the 37,300 of the population of trouble tickets 

 4   relating to out of service, we did require access to 

 5   the customer's premise to restore and repair the 

 6   service.  In the process of doing that, we were unable 

 7   to reach 242 of them as we cleared the trouble to 

 8   confirm, or as we went to go clear the trouble, we 

 9   didn't have access, and we weren't able to secure that 

10   within the two-business-day time frame.  So the 242 

11   would be a subset of the 37300.

12       Q.    In the year before Qwest asked the UTC to 

13   approve a service quality performance program and the 

14   merger, how many of the failures to clear 

15   out-of-service conditions were due to lack of access to 

16   customer premises?

17       A.    I don't have that specific number with me.

18       Q.    Please turn to Page 11 of your testimony.

19       A.    I have it.

20       Q.    In that table there, that table excludes 

21   everything that Qwest is asking to exclude, including 

22   the tickets left open in error, the tickets missed due 

23   to major cable cuts, and tickets due to customer 

24   reasons; is that true?

25       A.    That is correct.
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 1       Q.    Is this a presentation of 2001 results that 

 2   you think actually captures Qwest's performance?

 3       A.    It is, yes.

 4       Q.    Does this table show that if all of Qwest 

 5   proposed exclusions for unusual or exceptional 

 6   circumstances were made, the company restored all of 

 7   their outages within two working days?

 8       A.    No.  The second column to the right shows 

 9   those tickets that would not have been restored within 

10   two working days, even with the exclusions shown on 

11   that table.

12       Q.    And that total is...

13       A.    496.

14       Q.    It's true, isn't it, that there isn't even a 

15   single month where Qwest by its own definition of 

16   unusual or exceptional circumstances met the standard 

17   of restoring all out-of-service conditions within two 

18   working days?

19       A.    That statement is correct for our performance 

20   in 2001.

21       Q.    I would like to revisit the question that 

22   Ms. Jensen deferred to you concerning the difference 

23   between 48 hours and two working days.  I would like 

24   you to consider another example.  The company receives 

25   a trouble report on Tuesday at 2 p.m.  If the company 
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 1   restores service on Thursday at 7 p.m., has it met the 

 2   two-working-day standard?

 3       A.    Two working days being 48 hours, no, it has 

 4   not.

 5       Q.    It's a separate question.  I agree with you 

 6   that the company would not have met the 48-hour 

 7   standard, but has it met the two-working-day standard?

 8       A.    Working days generally being defined as an 8 

 9   to 5, yes.

10       Q.    No.  We were discussing this difference 

11   earlier with Ms. Jensen; that the two working interval 

12   would not necessarily result in --

13             MS. JOHNSTON:  Your Honor, may I have a 

14   moment? 

15             JUDGE MOSS:  Yes.

16             MS. JOHNSTON:  Your Honor, I would like to 

17   approach the witness and suggest that he read two 

18   sentences of the Qwest Corporation service quality 

19   performance 2001 leaflet that may assist in clearing 

20   this up for the record.

21             JUDGE MOSS:  We do need some clarity on this 

22   point because as I've understood the witness's 

23   testimony previously, he is making a 24-hour period 

24   roughly synonymous with a working day, which would mean 

25   two working days is equal to 48 hours and we wouldn't 
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 1   have a different standard, so we do need some clarity 

 2   on this, and if this will help, please approach the 

 3   witness and provide him with the document.

 4             MS. JOHNSTON:  Thank you.

 5             CHAIRWOMAN SHOWALTER:  I understood his 

 6   previous testimony to say that the working day goes up 

 7   to midnight, and that actually, if it was a Tuesday 

 8   afternoon that you get until Thursday midnight, which 

 9   is more than 48 hours in that instance, but I'm 

10   confused.

11             MS. ANDERL:  This may be a perfect example of 

12   why I asked there be a panel.  Maybe this is the only 

13   example where we needed a panel, but I think this is a 

14   question really that goes to the knowledge of both the 

15   standard set forth in the merger agreement and the 

16   tariff as well as Mr. Jones' own internal network 

17   standards, and I'm going to suggest there is not a 

18   foundation upon which to ask him about the contents of 

19   the bill insert, and those questions ought to be 

20   deferred to Ms. Jensen.

21             JUDGE MOSS:  I just want to get it cleared 

22   up.  Ms. Jensen, will you sit up here next to 

23   Ms. Anderl where you can have a microphone available, 

24   and I will remind you you are still under oath.  Now, 

25   Ms. Johnston, if you will direct your questions to the 
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 1   witness on the stand, and if he says he cannot answer 

 2   them and Ms. Jensen should, then we have her available.

 3             MS. JOHNSTON:  That's fine, but it was my 

 4   understanding that Ms. Jensen deferred these very 

 5   questions to Mr. Jones, but please read that portion 

 6   that I have identified.

 7             MS. JENSEN:  The portion on the bill insert, 

 8   which I also believe reflects what is in the tariff, is 

 9   that the company will restore out-of-service conditions 

10   as soon as possible.  All out-of-service conditions 

11   will be restored no later than two working days from 

12   the date that the outage was originally reported.  For 

13   example, a customer calls to report an out-of-service 

14   condition on Tuesday at 2 p.m.  That service will be 

15   restored no later than close of company business on 

16   Thursday.  Typically, close of company business is 

17   7 p.m. 

18             What I might do, Ms. Johnston, is just help 

19   you in my deferral of your question to Mr. Jones.  It 

20   was specific to the exhibit and what that exhibit meant 

21   at that point in time by 48 hours, which may be the 

22   strict interpretation of 48 hours or may have been 

23   something different, and I couldn't answer that for you 

24   and hoped Mr. Jones could.

25             With respect to the distinction in this bill 
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 1   insert, this is a matter of interpretation and 

 2   agreement amongst the parties of how two working days 

 3   would be interpreted as well as tariffed under the 

 4   merger agreement, which, in fact, may be different than 

 5   the internal company measure, and it was done in 

 6   recognition that the company's business hours do extend 

 7   into the evening, so I hope that helps clarify it.

 8       Q.    (By Ms. Johnston)  Ms. Jensen or Mr. Jones, 

 9   is the two-working-day standard easier to meet than the 

10   48-hour standard?  It is, isn't it?

11       A.    I operate the network organization to restore 

12   service and repair service based on a 48-hour standard 

13   time clock, running time clock.

14       Q.    That doesn't answer my question though.  

15   Which is the easier standard to satisfy, the 

16   two-working-day standard or the 48-hour standard?

17       A.    Theoretically in terms of how you define 

18   working days, it would be working days would be the 

19   theoretical answer.

20             MS. JOHNSTON:  Thank you.  That's all I have.

21             JUDGE MOSS:  Ms. Jensen, you can relax.  

22   Mr. ffitch?

23    

24    

25                              
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 1                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

 2   BY MR. FFITCH: 

 3       Q.    Good afternoon, Mr. Jones.  Really just one 

 4   or two questions, I think.  Can I ask you to look at 

 5   Page 3 of your testimony, and I'm looking at Lines 1 

 6   through 5.  I just want to understand your testimony 

 7   here.  Is it my understanding essentially here you 

 8   distinguish between those trouble reports cleared where 

 9   you don't need access, and that's about 85 percent or 

10   84 percent, and then up above, there are approximately 

11   20 percent where you do need access?  Is that correct 

12   so far?

13       A.    I believe I know my earlier answer was 

14   confusing, so I would like to try to clarify that now.

15       Q.    All right, go ahead.  You may be going off on 

16   a direction we don't need to go.  You are just making a 

17   distinction between the majority of trouble reports are 

18   cleared without the need for access, 84 percent; right, 

19   and the rest require access, or the number that you've 

20   listed up above require access; right?

21       A.    The two percentages that are shown with the 

22   answer on Page 3 do not correspond to one another.  

23   They are separate measures.  On Line 4, the 84 percent 

24   represents the number of trouble tickets that were 

25   taken in the year that were cleared without the need 
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 1   for customer access.  The balance of that required 

 2   customer access for us to clear those tickets. 

 3             What's shown on Line 1 on Page 3 is for those 

 4   population of tickets that went more than two working 

 5   days, 242, or 19.8 percent of that, we were unable to 

 6   restore due to access to the customer, so there are two 

 7   separate events.

 8       Q.    Thank you for that clarification.  So your 

 9   testimony is that certainly with regard to the 84 

10   percent, those are not unusual circumstances; is that 

11   right? 

12       A.    My testimony is of the population, I believe, 

13   233,000 out-of-service trouble tickets, 84 percent of 

14   those reports we were able to clear without needing 

15   access to the customer's premise.

16       Q.    And the remainder you did need access, and 

17   some of those were unusual and some of those weren't.

18       A.    All of those that we were able to gain access 

19   to to verify that we had restored service, we did not 

20   and don't have the ability to go back and examine 

21   exactly what were the circumstances relating to those 

22   access to define whether they were unusual or not.  The 

23   242 we view as unusual from the standpoint that a 

24   customer is out of service and we are racing to try to 

25   restore that service and are inhibited from completing 
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 1   that because we don't have access to the customer's 

 2   facilities. 

 3             If I could provide just an example for the 

 4   record in terms of perhaps what it's like from an 

 5   operational perspective, in viewing one of these 

 6   situations just last week, we were able to get access 

 7   to the customer's premise, but they had a hot tub in 

 8   front of the SNI.  Our technicians don't move hot tubs 

 9   or move equipment, so I can't close that ticket until 

10   that customer arranges to move that away from us.  We 

11   would deem that as being an unusual circumstance, but 

12   it's not all that uncommon in terms of how we face 

13   difficulty from a customer access standpoint.

14       Q.    It's not all that uncommon for you to 

15   encounter situations where you have difficulty getting 

16   access to customer premises; is that right?

17       A.    We try to arrange with customers to try to 

18   minimize encountering those situations where you have 

19   difficulty from access by asking is there an 

20   alternative number where they can be reached at knowing 

21   they are out of service on the telephone number in case 

22   we do encounter those difficulties.

23       Q.    A certain percentage of your trouble report 

24   calls involve that kind of problem; correct?

25       A.    Yes.
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 1       Q.    At the time of the merger agreement, did U S 

 2   West experience occasions when trouble reports weren't 

 3   completed within 48 hours due to customer reasons?

 4       A.    I have to believe so.  Without having the 

 5   data or specific incidents, I would have to say yes, it 

 6   did occur.

 7       Q.    Did some of those include the kind of 

 8   circumstances you are talking about with hot tubs in 

 9   the way, or to refer to other examples from your 

10   testimony, vicious dogs or locked areas?

11       A.    I have to believe so, yes, they did.

12       Q.    Did U S West experience major cable outages 

13   prior to the merger that were not restored in two 

14   working days?

15       A.    I have to believe they did, yes.

16             MR. FFITCH:  Thank you.  I don't have any 

17   further questions, Your Honor.

18             JUDGE MOSS:  We are running into a time 

19   constraint here.  I don't know that we can complete 

20   questions from the Bench and redirect in the next seven 

21   minutes, which is how much time we have left in today's 

22   hearing day.  Do we have questions from the Bench?

23             CHAIRWOMAN SHOWALTER:  So far, do you have 

24   redirect?

25             MS. ANDERL:  No.
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 1             JUDGE MOSS:  Let's try to finish the witness 

 2   then.

 3    

 4    

 5                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

 6   BY COMMISSIONER HEMSTAD: 

 7       Q.    From your testimony, I take it it's your 

 8   position that using the unusual or exceptional 

 9   circumstances -- I don't want to say standard, but that 

10   phrase is used in mitigation paragraph, and then you 

11   apply that to major outages and customer access to the 

12   premises constraint, and both of those, in your view, 

13   would meet the criterion of unusual or exceptional 

14   circumstances?

15       A.    I certainly view them as exceptional, and I 

16   think the number of occurrences relative to the total 

17   event, to use Ms. Johnston's equation is less than  

18   .001, puts it in the unusual category, which is why I 

19   view it that way.

20       Q.    In looking at the last page of your 

21   testimony, Page 11, and the spreadsheet you have there, 

22   and then applying the 95 percent standard, you would 

23   come to the conclusion that under that analysis, there 

24   would be zero credits to be paid.  

25       A.    That is correct.
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 1       Q.    If you think that is accurate, why didn't the 

 2   company ask for a 100 percent mitigation rather than 

 3   two-thirds?

 4       A.    My understanding in terms of the discussion 

 5   that was going on during the settlement and the 

 6   negotiation or around the agreement is that there was 

 7   probably not sufficient operational understanding of 

 8   some of the nuances related to the out-of-service 

 9   condition that they didn't raise the .011 type of 

10   occurrences that probably should be taken into account.  

11   If you are really looking at define it, a standard that 

12   is both stretched that is as well as attainable.

13       Q.    My question is really why in the company's 

14   petition didn't it ask for 100 percent mitigation if 

15   your analysis would conclude that you, in fact, did 

16   meet the unusual and exceptional circumstances 

17   measurement?

18       A.    Commissioner Hemstad, with your permission, 

19   could I bring in Ms. Jensen in answering that question?

20       Q.    Sure.

21             MS. JENSEN:  The reason the company did not 

22   include that in the petition for mitigation is that 

23   these are exclusions that we feel are appropriate 

24   prospectively.  It's not that they are inappropriate 

25   with respect to 2001 performance, but it was new 
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 1   information to the company, and in trying to strike a 

 2   proper balance, we felt it was appropriate to address 

 3   them on a perspective basis.  It's really a balanced 

 4   approach in terms of not asking for complete mitigation 

 5   of the full credit.

 6       Q.    A follow-up question to either of you then, 

 7   probably to you Ms. Jensen.  You didn't use a 

 8   mathematical analysis in coming up with your mitigation 

 9   recommendation in the petition.

10             MS. JENSEN:  No.  In fact, this was done 

11   after the fact.

12             COMMISSIONER HEMSTAD:  That's all I have.

13             JUDGE MOSS:  Does that prompt any further 

14   cross?  Any redirect?  All right.  Mr. Jones, thank you 

15   for your testimony.  You are excused, subject to  

16   recall I should probably say since we had Ms. Jensen 

17   back.  In terms of procedure, we do have to close our 

18   hearing day in a few moments here.  It appears that we 

19   should be able to continue in the morning.  Let's be 

20   off the record.

21             (Discussion off the record.)

22             MS. ANDERL:  Might I ask if Mr. Jones could 

23   be available, if he is subject to recall, by telephone?

24             JUDGE MOSS:  I don't think we are going to 

25   need Mr. Jones back realistically.  Yes, I think that 
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 1   would be acceptable.

 2             MS. JOHNSTON:  Your Honor, I have a direct 

 3   conflict, unfortunately, tomorrow.  I have a 

 4   long-standing dental appointment that's going to last 

 5   nearly three hours, and it's in the morning, and I've 

 6   already rescheduled it once, and I confirmed when the 

 7   office called me today, so I'm loathe to pass on that 

 8   at another time.

 9             CHAIRWOMAN SHOWALTER:  What about the 

10   afternoon?

11             MS. JOHNSTON:  The afternoon is fine.  I 

12   believe I have a meeting with the commission on another 

13   matter.

14             CHAIRWOMAN SHOWALTER:  We have three meetings 

15   tomorrow, all of which could be shoved to the morning 

16   or the afternoon, so I think the commissioners can make 

17   the afternoon or morning available.

18             MS. JOHNSTON:  I'll prop myself up, but I 

19   will be here for the afternoon.  I would prefer that.

20             JUDGE MOSS:  We'll continue at 1:30 then.  I 

21   want to ask the parties too though, there are a couple 

22   of other procedural questions while we are on this 

23   subject.  Do the parties contemplate any posthearing 

24   argument or briefs or closing arguments?

25             MS. ANDERL:  No. 
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 1             MS. JOHNSTON:  No.

 2             MS. ANDERL:  If the commission would find 

 3   that helpful, we would be happy to do it.

 4             JUDGE MOSS:  Would we find closing arguments 

 5   helpful?

 6             MS. JOHNSTON:  I wouldn't find it helpful if 

 7   I were you.

 8             COMMISSIONER HEMSTAD:  Let's wait until 

 9   tomorrow and see where we are.

10             JUDGE MOSS:  My understanding from the 

11   petition is that the company would prefer to have an 

12   order by March 13th.  Does that have something to do 

13   with your billing cycle?

14             MS. ANDERL:  Yes, Your Honor.  We are 

15   required, I believe, to apply the credit within 90 days 

16   after the end of the year, which means we have to 

17   select a day sometime in March to identify all the 

18   customers and do a cut as to who is getting the credit 

19   in order to --

20             JUDGE MOSS:  That's something under the terms 

21   of the settlement agreement?

22             MS. ANDERL:  Yes.

23             JUDGE MOSS:  That's something to which the 

24   commission could give a waiver if it chose, I suppose.

25             MS. ANDERL:  Yes.
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 1             JUDGE MOSS:  So we have some flexibility 

 2   there if we need it.  I'm just a little concerned about 

 3   the procedural time available, but I think we will work 

 4   things out and discuss it further tomorrow.  In the 

 5   meantime, we will be in recess until 1:30 tomorrow 

 6   afternoon.

 7                              

 8               (Hearing recessed at 4:15 p.m.)
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